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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Good

          3  afternoon. Today the Committee on Consumer Affairs

          4  is holding its first oversight hearing on the

          5  revised DARP program. As you all recall, when we

          6  revised the program a year ago, we promised we would

          7  hold an oversight hearing to review its operation

          8  once it was up and running. Our primary concern in

          9  all of the work we have done over the past several

         10  years on the program to tow accident vehicles has

         11  been to eliminate the practice of chasing by tow

         12  trucks to accident scenes. We are happy that over

         13  the last year we have heard no reports of serious

         14  accidents involving tow trucks racing to accidents.

         15                 However, we have heard allegations

         16  that tow companies are sending employees to accident

         17  scenes in cars to solicit business and that accident

         18  vehicles are being picked up by non-DARP towers. In

         19  fact, I heard a colleague talking about an accident

         20  that disabled his car and he said he called his own

         21  tow company to the accident scene. When I heard this

         22  I realized this was a violation of our law. This

         23  story supports reports we have gotten from the

         24  towing industry of specific accidents which were

         25  given to non-DARP tow companies.
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          2                 We have shared these specifics with

          3  the Police Department and would like to hear from

          4  them and DCA today as to what they have done to

          5  prevent this practice, as well as to take action

          6  against tow companies who violate the law.

          7                 Our secondary concerns were related

          8  to fairness to both consumers and tow companies. We

          9  wanted to ensure that all qualified tow companies

         10  received equal chances to participate in the program

         11  through the calling of tow companies to accidents on

         12  a rotating basis.

         13                 If other tow companies are allowed to

         14  send employees to accident scenes, or if motorists

         15  involved in accidents are allowed to call their own

         16  tow companies, this upsets the balance we struck in

         17  the legislation and opened up opportunities for

         18  chasing.

         19                 In addition we saw to protect

         20  consumers from losing control of the vehicles and

         21  from overcharges because we knew we were limiting

         22  their choices in order to protect public safety.

         23                 We are interested in hearing the

         24  perspective of both DCA and the Police Department as

         25  to how the program is operating, both on the streets
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          2  as well as administratively. We want to know what

          3  kind of complaints you are getting and how you are

          4  handling them and now we will hear from the

          5  Administration.

          6                 MR. HABERMAN: Good afternoon,

          7  Chairwoman Koslowitz and members of the Committee,

          8  my name is Michael Haberman, I am the Special

          9  Assistant to the Commissioner, as well as the

         10  Director of Police, Planning and Intergovernmental

         11  Affairs at the Department of Consumer Affairs.

         12                 To my right is Andy Eiler, whom many

         13  of you know, and during the question period I might

         14  turn to him for some assistance as our Chief

         15  Research Analyst and has a lot of experience with

         16  the DARP Program.

         17                 Before I begin, the Commissioner

         18  asked me to express his regrets that he was unable

         19  to attend and also to thank you for the opportunity

         20  to appear before you.

         21                 DARP has gone through several

         22  permutations since it was established by Local Law

         23  28 of 1987 and went into effect on March 10th, 1988.

         24  The version that is currently operational is based

         25  on the changes that were implemented by Local Law
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          2  '94 of 1997, that was enacted in December 1997. It

          3  became fully effective six months after enactment.

          4                 The rules of the revised program were

          5  promulgated on August 19th, 1998, and became

          6  effective on September 18th, 1998. Since the current

          7  version of the program has been operational for less

          8  than one year, we do not yet have complete data that

          9  would make it possible to compare the efficiency and

         10  effectiveness of the current program to previous

         11  versions.

         12                 I can, however, tell you that as of

         13  January 1999, 163 towing companies were on the DARP

         14  list. This is an updated list that was pruned of

         15  companies that had become inactive, dropped out or

         16  had otherwise ceased to participate in the program.

         17                 The number of companies on the list

         18  has remained steady from July 1998 with a few

         19  changes. Nine companies were dropped, 11 companies

         20  were added, so there is roughly the same number of

         21  companies still on the list.

         22                 DCA is constantly evaluating the new

         23  DARP program and looking for ways to approve the

         24  efficiency of the program. A couple of the things

         25  that I would like to mention that we are looking at
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          2  now:

          3                 DCA has set up a computer link with

          4  the Police Department to enable us to constantly

          5  update the list of companies that have been placed

          6  or removed from the program. The link has eliminated

          7  the paper-based system that was in place, that made

          8  it difficult to ensure that the list of active

          9  companies was complete and up-to-date. We are

         10  currently preparing a checklist of program

         11  requirements that all DARP applicants will receive

         12  when they come to apply for the license. We will

         13  give this checklist a very detailed checklist to the

         14  applicants, they will bring it back to their yard,

         15  go through the checklist, make sure they meet all

         16  their requirements, sign the bottom that they meet

         17  their requirements and send it back to us. At that

         18  time we will go out and inspect the lock to certify

         19  that they do meet all the DARP qualifications.

         20                 We have also instituted a program to

         21  have tow truck operators bring their trucks to our

         22  inspection station in Brooklyn to be inspected for

         23  compliance with applicable tow truck requirements.

         24  We used to go to their sites for every type of

         25  inspection, now if it is just a new truck where you
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          2  have the truck come to us it saves time for our

          3  inspectors as well as for the tow companies.

          4                 Finally, we are developing a program

          5  with the PD to train the police training sergeants

          6  on the requirements of the tow and specialized

          7  towing program so that they can properly instruct

          8  the police officers in their command.

          9                 We are also planning a more

         10  intensified training program for members of units

         11  specializing in tow truck, auto crime-related

         12  matters.

         13                 We believe that these innovations

         14  have streamlined and improved the efficiency of the

         15  DARP program, and we are of course always looking

         16  for ways to make it better.

         17                 Thank you, again, for the opportunity

         18  to appear before you on behalf of the Commissioner,

         19  and I am prepared to answer any questions after

         20  Captain Defilippo speaks.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Before we

         22  start, I would like to introduce my colleagues.

         23                 To my extreme left is Council Member

         24  Henry, and I want to welcome to this Committee a

         25  colleague and a friend, Annette Robinson, welcome.
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          2                 I want to start off by saying that I

          3  find it unacceptable that in a year that you can't

          4  provide any kind of data on how this program is

          5  working.

          6                 When we passed this law it was not an

          7  easy law to pass, and one of the reasons I am having

          8  this hearing today is to see how the program is

          9  working. Because right now sitting in this room we

         10  have people who have a lot of stake on this program

         11  to maintain their businesses, and not to have data

         12  to know how something is working. It is sort of like

         13  saying to them, well, we don't care about you.

         14                 MR. HABERMAN: We don't not have any

         15  data. We don't have all of the data that would

         16  enable us to make a fair comparison of the previous

         17  program and this program. We do have data on some of

         18  the past year's activities, but we are talking about

         19  making a direct comparison between the way the

         20  program was operating before and the way the program

         21  was operating now because --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Do you have

         23  six months worth of data?

         24                 MR. HABERMAN: Yes. We have some data,

         25  yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: When you have

          3  some data, what is some data?

          4                 MR. HABERMAN: The number of

          5  inspections, number of violations, that type of

          6  stuff.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: I am not

          8  totally interested in necessarily those numbers. I

          9  am interested in how the program is working, the

         10  rotation system of how these people are --

         11                 MR. HABERMAN: Well, the Captain might

         12  answer some of those questions and then if you have

         13  specific questions after he speaks, we will be happy

         14  to answer them.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: I mean, I

         16  could sit here and tell you right now that there are

         17  people that get stuck and call their own tow. Which

         18  means automatically that the rotation system that

         19  someone is falling behind because you are calling

         20  your own tow, then they can't be doing the rotation

         21  system and that was told to them by the police, call

         22  your own tow.

         23                 Please.

         24                 CAPTAIN DEFILIPPO: Good afternoon,

         25  Chairwoman Koslowitz and members of the Committee on
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          2  Consumer Affairs. My name is Captain Michael

          3  Defilippo, and I am an aide to the Chief of Patrol

          4  John Scanlon. I will briefly outline how the

          5  Directed Accident Response Program, DARP, works.

          6                 DARP allows police officers, through

          7  our communications division, to order a tow company

          8  to tow a vehicle from the scene of an accident. It

          9  also prevents tow companies from racing to the

         10  scenes of accidents to "hook" vehicles.

         11                 When a police officer responds to the

         12  scene of an accident, the officer determines whether

         13  someone designated by the owner can safely drive the

         14  vehicle.

         15                 If the vehicle can be safely driven

         16  the officer does not order a tow company. But if the

         17  vehicle cannot be driven safely, the officer orders

         18  a tow through our Communications Division. Owners

         19  are not permitted to call their own tow company,

         20  unless the vehicle is 15,000 pounds or more, or the

         21  owner of the vehicle is a government agency.

         22                 In addition, the vehicle does not

         23  fall under the law if it is held as evidence, if it

         24  is held for investigation, or if it is subject to

         25  the Rotation Tow program.
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          2                 The officer tells Communications the

          3  plate number, color and body type of the vehicle.

          4  The officer must not reveal the make, model or year

          5  of the vehicle.

          6                 If the assigned tow company does not

          7  respond within 30 minutes, the assignment of that

          8  tow company will be cancelled. A report of violation

          9  will be prepared and a second tow company will be

         10  assigned. The police officer will not wait for the

         11  second tow company to respond. The Police Officer

         12  will resume patrol.

         13                 If the officer observes a violation

         14  that affects the tow operator, the officer issues a

         15  summons and a Report of Violation. In 1998, 801

         16  reports of violations were issued to tow companies.

         17                 Thank you, and I would be happy to

         18  answer any of your questions.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: I would like

         20  to ask you, how come we have that data and we don't

         21  have the other data? How come we have the data of

         22  the violations and we don't have other data?

         23                 CAPTAIN DEFILIPPO: Specifically what

         24  other data would you be looking for? Would you be

         25  looking for the percentage of DARP accidents where
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          2  the DARP vehicles respond, as a percentage of total

          3  accidents that occur in the City?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: The number of

          5  DARP calls in the past year. That you don't have,

          6  but you have the number of the summonses.

          7                 CAPTAIN DEFILIPPO: I have the total

          8  number of, in 1998 there were a total number of

          9  246,190 vehicle accidents in the City of New York,

         10  that is founded vehicle accidents where a police

         11  officer responds to a location through our

         12  Communications Unit, and observes tow vehicles that

         13  have been in an accident or a vehicle and a

         14  pedestrian.

         15                 Of those 246,190 accidents, 138,854

         16  accidents were deemed by the investigating officer

         17  not to require a tow. 22,195 did require a DARP tow,

         18  1,811 required some other tow that fell into one of

         19  the exceptions, 222 vehicle accidents required a

         20  DARP tow and another tow, and 4,176 of the accidents

         21  happened on highways, which fall under another

         22  program, and 101 vehicle accidents, the DARP

         23  operator did not respond to the scene of the

         24  accident within 30 minutes.

         25                 In addition to that, 78,831 vehicle
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          2  accidents were given a disposition other than

          3  whether or not a tow was required.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Do you have

          5  the DARP numbers from the last year and the numbers

          6  of the DARP SARD program from the previous year?

          7                 CAPTAIN DEFILIPPO: From 1997. I don't

          8  have it broken down by DARP SARD, I have it broken

          9  down by the disposition of a tow truck responding to

         10  the scene of an accident and taking a vehicle towed

         11  from the scene, under either DARP or SARD. I don't

         12  have it broken down.

         13                 In 1997, 236,983 vehicles were

         14  involved in founded accidents. 133,747 did not

         15  require a tow, 22,004 vehicles required a DARP tow,

         16  2,360 vehicles required a tow other than DARP, 244

         17  vehicles required DARP SARD and another tow. 4,493

         18  vehicles were towed off highways and 42 accidents

         19  the DARP operator did not respond within 30 minutes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Okay. Is it

         21  possible for us to have a copy of those numbers?

         22                 CAPTAIN DEFILIPPO: I will be happy to

         23  provide the City Council with a copy of this report

         24  through written correspondence after the hearing,

         25  yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Okay, I want

          3  to ask you, what other tow is other than the DARP

          4  tow?

          5                 CAPTAIN DEFILIPPO: Well, we have

          6  several different programs. Can I just refer to my

          7  notes, and I will tell you.

          8                 For example, the NYPD will tow

          9  vehicles owned by the NYPD, or they will tow

         10  vehicles that are authorized for Police Department

         11  use.

         12                 There is the Rotation Tow Program

         13  which tows stolen vehicles or apparently abandoned

         14  vehicles. There is franchise tow companies that tow

         15  off tunnels, bridges and arterial highways. There

         16  are tows that are used by Sanitation and the Police

         17  Department when a vehicle is deemed to be a derelict

         18  and not worthy of recovery and is just taken to a

         19  lot to be disposed of. So there are several

         20  different tow programs, in effect DARP is only one

         21  small piece of the tow programs.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: What was the

         23  number of the -- what you just mentioned, all of

         24  those tows, how much was that?

         25                 CAPTAIN DEFILIPPO: In 1998 other tows
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          2  would fall under 1,811, and in 1997, other tows were

          3  2,360.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: And in 1998

          5  you can't give me the amount of DARP towing?

          6                 CAPTAIN DEFILIPPO: For 1998, I have

          7  22,195 accidents are listed in our computer as being

          8  DARP towed. That does not answer the full question,

          9  however. That is where a 911 communications

         10  dispatcher puts in the final disposition as a

         11  vehicle being towed. There is a hierarchy of

         12  dispositions.

         13                 For example, if an accident involves

         14  an arrest situation, you know, the communications

         15  dispatcher will dispose of the accident as being

         16  recorded as an arrest, as being recorded as a crime,

         17  or maybe having the accident people involved in the

         18  accident taken to a hospital.

         19                 Our 911 system only records one

         20  disposition per job. So, we have, where we know of,

         21  22,195 dispositions where a DARP tow was involved.

         22                 We have the other dispositions --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: What was that

         24  last figure?

         25                 CAPTAIN DEFILIPPO: For '98?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: 22,195. Now,

          3  of the 246,190 accidents, 78,831 of those accidents

          4  were disposed of by our communications dispatchers

          5  using another radio code. So, it could have very

          6  well been a DARP tow plus another radio code signal

          7  where the radio dispatcher disposed of the job

          8  without making the DARP tow the number one

          9  disposition.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: How would you

         11  account for me hearing from a colleague that they

         12  were told to call their own tow?

         13                 CAPTAIN DEFILIPPO: I would not say

         14  that it would not occur. I would like to have the

         15  information so that I can investigate it more

         16  thoroughly. You know, it may be the situation where

         17  a DARP tow just did not respond to the scene of an

         18  accident. The officers left, gave the number of a

         19  DARP operator, and the person waiting at the scene.

         20  They called for a second tow, maybe the second tow

         21  did not respond, and maybe it was in a situation

         22  where the person was required to call his own tow

         23  company.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: No, it was a

         25  situation that required a DARP tow.
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          2                 CAPTAIN DEFILIPPO: You know, whatever

          3  the situation is, you know, I would like to have the

          4  opportunity to investigate it and respond through a

          5  proper investigation, and not speculate any further

          6  here.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Okay, these

          8  are letters that we had sent to you prior to this

          9  hearing, and I would like to know what is going on.

         10  They are specific incidents.

         11                 CAPTAIN DEFILIPPO: Those are the

         12  letters from Mr. Teitler. Those letters make serious

         13  allegations and are being investigated and I can't

         14  comment on open investigations.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: How long will

         16  the investigation take?

         17                 CAPTAIN DEFILIPPO: I don't know. That

         18  is up to the Internal Affairs Bureau.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Very

         20  truthfully, I am tired of sitting in all of my

         21  Committee hearings and hearing about investigations

         22  and having no answers. I mean, that is how I feel.

         23  We passed a law and we want to make sure that the

         24  law is working, and I think it is the responsibility

         25  of both the Administration and the City Council when
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          2  we do pass the law to be able to provide information

          3  one year later to justify the law that we have

          4  passed.

          5                 I don't want to go on for a long

          6  period of time without information, and I am going

          7  to say this, that in a short time in, this is the

          8  end of March, I would probably say at the end of

          9  June I would like to have another hearing and really

         10  have some concrete information, because by that time

         11  it will be a year and a half that we have passed

         12  this law, and I have to make sure that the law is

         13  working. Because the laws that we pass affect lives.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Does anyone

         15  have a question?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Yes, Madame

         17  Chair.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Council Member

         19  Sabini.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Thank you,

         21  Madame Chair.

         22                 I just wanted to ask Mr. Haberman,

         23  the use of technology in the implementation of Local

         24  Law 94, it would be a system that would permit tow

         25  companies to respond to accidents for a certain time
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          2  period instead of on a per accident basis. Is such

          3  technology up yet and running?

          4                 MR. HABERMAN: I am not sure what you

          5  are asking.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: In other

          7  words, there would be in effect like a computerized

          8  schedule.

          9                 MR. HABERMAN: Well, the schedule is

         10  -- there is a computerized link between the Police

         11  Department and us, but the lists are not called in a

         12  time frame, they are called in a rotational basis.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: But I mean,

         14  couldn't you do a system whereby the companies would

         15  be delegated certain hours by computer? Certain time

         16  frames.

         17                 MR. HABERMAN: That was more along the

         18  lines of the SARD program which was abolished.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: I understand

         20  that, but I mean, using the reform that Local Law 19

         21  brought in, but instead of assigning them on a

         22  by-accident basis, you would just say, okay, tow

         23  company A, B, C gets this time period.

         24                 MR. HABERMAN: I believe the law says

         25  that the way it is to be done is by accident off the
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          2  list in a rotational basis.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Rotational

          4  basis is in the law, but it doesn't have to say by

          5  accident; am I right, counsel?

          6                 MR. HABERMAN: Well, I will look into

          7  that, but, no, we are doing it currently on a

          8  rotational basis.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Maybe you

         10  should. Maybe that would make things easier for the

         11  people who -- you know, the Chair said lives are at

         12  stake here, livelihoods are at stake here too. Both.

         13  I mean lives are at stake here too, people have lost

         14  their lives because of abuses of some of the

         15  operators as well, so we are here to solve or make

         16  better both problems as best we can.

         17                 I would ask you to look at that

         18  because I think that that might be more equitable

         19  and a less confusing and it is generally a better

         20  way to do it.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: I just have a

         23  few more questions.

         24                 Have you received complaints from

         25  customers that tow companies are not taking credit
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          2  cards?

          3                 MR. HABERMAN: A few, but not a large

          4  number, no.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Have you

          6  received complaints -- how many violations have been

          7  written against companies in this program in the

          8  last year?

          9                 MR. HABERMAN: In Fiscal Year '99 so

         10  far, there has been about 140 DARP violations that

         11  DCA has considered.  Violations, now, those come

         12  from both the LD6s, they come from the Police

         13  Department, as well as when our inspectors are out

         14  at yards for a reason they might notice a DARP

         15  violation, so that includes both of those.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: And how many

         17  violations have been written for soliciting at the

         18  scene of an accident? And what is being done to

         19  ensure that neither tow nor repair companies are

         20  soliciting at accidents?

         21                 MR. HABERMAN: I don't have, in any of

         22  the ones we received, any.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: In 1998, 801

         24  reports of violations were issued to tow companies,

         25  and how come now it is 401 -- 140?
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          2                 CAPTAIN DEFILIPPO: I would like to

          3  respond to that. We write reports of violations, if

          4  a tow truck has a broken tail light or has an

          5  infraction on the VTL, we will write not only the

          6  summons, but we will also write the reports of

          7  violation.

          8                 Whether or not the Department of

          9  Consumer Affairs wants to prosecute that report of

         10  violation is entirely up to that City agency. So,

         11  although we will have 801 reports of violations, not

         12  all of them will be prosecuted by the Department of

         13  Consumer Affairs.

         14                 In addition to that, the 801 reports

         15  of violations is not necessarily 801 violations. One

         16  report of violation, commonly referred to as an LD6,

         17  might have numerous VTL violations or other

         18  violations listed on the report that goes to

         19  consumer affairs.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: How many

         21  consumer complaints have been lodged against

         22  companies in this program in the last year?

         23                 MR. HABERMAN: I don't have that

         24  number, total number of complaints.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Well, I have
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          2  to say to you that at the end of June we are going

          3  to have another meeting and I really want the

          4  numbers. I really want to see if this program is

          5  working or it is not working, and I want to have the

          6  numbers, okay?

          7                 MR. HABERMAN: Okay.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Okay. Thank

          9  you.

         10                 Council Member Spigner.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Do you have

         12  any areas of the City where you don't have adequate

         13  companies participating in the program, the DARP

         14  program?

         15                 CAPTAIN DEFILIPPO: Not to my

         16  knowledge. There are areas of Manhattan that do not

         17  have tow companies physically located in the Borough

         18  of Manhattan, but tow companies from outside the

         19  Borough of Manhattan, to respond to Manhattan and

         20  pick up vehicles in accidents.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: So, you said

         22  that there are occasions when the first DARP company

         23  doesn't respond, then the police call the second

         24  company on the list and then he leaves the scene,

         25  right?
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          2                 CAPTAIN DEFILIPPO: There are

          3  instances when the first company is called, and if

          4  there is not response in 30 minutes, at that time

          5  the police officer leaves the scene.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: And in those

          7  instances the owner of the vehicle is able to call

          8  his or her own tow?

          9                 CAPTAIN DEFILIPPO: No, we call a

         10  second tow company that has another 30 minutes

         11  respond, we do not wait for that second tow company.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: So there is

         13  no one keeping the clock on the second 30 minutes.

         14                 CAPTAIN DEFILIPPO: The owner. The

         15  owner or the motorist in the vehicle accident is

         16  told wait 30 minutes, and if nobody responds to call

         17  the DARP operator in the Communications.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Oh, then they

         19  call the DARP operator.

         20                 CAPTAIN DEFILIPPO: Right.

         21                 CAPTAIN DEFILIPPO: Could he or she

         22  call his or her own tow company?

         23                 CAPTAIN DEFILIPPO: I would imagine

         24  that any permutation or combination would be

         25  possible at that point in time. I don't have
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          2  statistics on that because we are not there.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: So there is

          4  no supervision on the scene and we don't know what

          5  happens.

          6                 CAPTAIN DEFILIPPO: Not after the

          7  second call.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Not after the

          9  second call.

         10                 How many hearings have been held for

         11  complaints? Have you received complaints against

         12  DARP companies in the last year? And how many, if

         13  you know? And what were the outcomes of these

         14  various hearings in terms of consumer complaints?

         15                 MR. HABERMAN: We don't have a

         16  specific number of DARP complaints. We do have -- we

         17  would be able to give overall number of complaints,

         18  for towing which I didn't bring with me and should

         19  have, but I can tell you that in 1998 we held 66

         20  hearings against DARP -- for DARP violations, so far

         21  this year we have held 40 hearings for DARP

         22  violations, those come from the Police Department,

         23  not from consumers. We don't usually get complaints

         24  about DARP from consumers, as far as I know. But we

         25  don't break it down by DARP complaints.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: How do you

          3  measure the effectiveness or the consumer acceptance

          4  or the level of service being provided under this

          5  concept? How do you measure it? And not through

          6  complaints or commendations; have you received

          7  commendations, congratulations for a job well done?

          8                 MR. HABERMAN: We get numbers, you

          9  know, from the Police Department of how many

         10  violations there are.

         11                 As I said, a consumer might call and

         12  say that they couldn't get a tow truck, or this tow

         13  truck charged them too much money, but it is not

         14  usually, they don't even know the DARP program

         15  exists and they are not going to probably notice a

         16  --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: So you

         18  received 40 that you can identify in connection with

         19  the operations of --

         20                 MR. HABERMAN: As the actual

         21  violations.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Out of the

         23  thousands of tows that were made?

         24                 MR. HABERMAN: Right.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Okay.
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          2                 Have you eliminated any companies

          3  from the program for violations, or a series of

          4  violations?

          5                 MR. HABERMAN: We are in the process

          6  of eliminating tow companies right now, one was

          7  illegally sharing storage space, and the other one

          8  was-- I am sorry, they were both insufficient

          9  storage space, and -- let me just see, I am sorry.

         10                 One was for improper record-keeping,

         11  I am sorry. One was for improper storage space,

         12  insufficient, the 1,200 square feet per licensed tow

         13  truck, the other one was not keeping the proper

         14  records as required by the law.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Now, in terms

         16  of the failure to respond to -- do you have those

         17  statistics?

         18                 MR. HABERMAN: According to my

         19  statistics, we have not received any violations for

         20  failure -- I am sorry, for failure to respond we

         21  have received 25. Twenty were unable to respond

         22  within the 30 minutes, five were unavailable to

         23  respond, and then one we were able to determine that

         24  he was not available 24 hours a day, seven days a

         25  week.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: So you do

          3  make an investigation, if a company does fail to

          4  respond?

          5                 MR. HABERMAN: If we get it from the

          6  Police Department. As I said, we usually don't get

          7  that complaint from the consumer, but we get it from

          8  the Police Department.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Okay.

         10                 They are penalized, of course, for

         11  failing to respond and how is that done? They are

         12  put to the bottom of the list or they are suspended?

         13                 MR. HABERMAN: What we do is, if you

         14  have three failures to respond within a six-month

         15  period, that is considered a serious offense, so we

         16  keep track of them when we get them from the Police

         17  Department, the company is notified that they

         18  received the violation, and that it is a violation.

         19  Once we have received three, we will then, if there

         20  are three within a six-month period we will set it

         21  for a hearing and put it before a judge to make a

         22  determination on what the penalty should be.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Do you have a

         24  large number or a small number falling into that

         25  category of three violations?
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          2                 MR. HABERMAN: Right now we haven't

          3  had any. We have not had any.

          4                 We have had complaints, as I said, of

          5  not responding, but none, not three per company in a

          6  six-month period.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Okay, thank

          8  you.

          9                 MR. HABERMAN: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Council Member

         11  Robinson.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Thank you,

         13  Chairwoman Koslowitz.

         14                 Can you tell me, you indicated that

         15  after the second call -- what is the response? What

         16  is the expected response time for a tow truck to

         17  respond to the accident?

         18                 CAPTAIN DEFILIPPO: Thirty minutes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Thirty

         20  minutes.

         21                 CAPTAIN DEFILIPPO: Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Thirty

         23  minutes, okay.

         24                 Let me ask you this question, are the

         25  tow trucks -- how is it done, by zone or what? I am
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          2  unfamiliar with the process, so could you please

          3  just kind of tell me how is it? Are they zoned by

          4  borough or areas?

          5                 CAPTAIN DEFILIPPO: No.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: How is that

          7  done?

          8                 CAPTAIN DEFILIPPO: The DARP zone may

          9  cover several precincts, and in that DARP zone there

         10  may be several tow companies assigned to the DARP

         11  zone and each tow company is assigned to a vehicle

         12  accident on a rotation basis. So, a DARP zone could

         13  have, I would say probably anywhere between four or

         14  five tow companies in it, and that DARP zone would

         15  cover one to two patrol precincts, depending on the

         16  size of the precinct.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: So, you say

         18  the DARP zone covers several precincts, is that what

         19  you said to me?

         20                 CAPTAIN DEFILIPPO: Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Okay.

         22                 And then you said that it is on a

         23  rotation of -- one tow truck is called.

         24                 CAPTAIN DEFILIPPO: Rotation per

         25  vehicle accident, yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Rotation,

          3  okay.

          4                 And then what happens, the next

          5  person -- how is that rotation kept? How do you

          6  manage that?

          7                 CAPTAIN DEFILIPPO: By computer at our

          8  communications unit. And then that information is,

          9  the police officer on the scene doesn't know who the

         10  tow company is, he just notifies communications that

         11  he needs a tow to respond, the Communications

         12  dispatcher orders the tow and then once the tow is

         13  notified informs the officer what tow company will

         14  be responding to the scene.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Okay, and

         16  then what happens is that when that tow company

         17  doesn't respond, then it goes to like the bottom of

         18  the list and the next company comes up?

         19                 CAPTAIN DEFILIPPO: That's correct.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Okay. And

         21  that is kept on computer at the Communications?

         22                 CAPTAIN DEFILIPPO: The Communications

         23  Center, yes.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Okay, thank

         25  you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Before I

          3  continue I just want to recognize Council Member

          4  Freed and Council Member Lasher, and Council Member

          5  Sabini, I don't remember if I mentioned your name

          6  before.

          7                 I have one other question. We

          8  received, the Speaker received a copy of a letter

          9  which has also been referred to your Complaints

         10  Division that alleges that the company that picks up

         11  a person's vehicle in Brooklyn insisted that it had

         12  to be towed back to his company's garage for $65

         13  before it could be towed to another location of his

         14  choice in Brooklyn for a mileage fee of $65.

         15  Additionally, the company would not take any credit

         16  cards.

         17                 Assuming the facts as I have

         18  explained them are true, what would DCA do?

         19                 MR. HABERMAN: If the facts were true

         20  we would hold a hearing and the Administrative Law

         21  Judge would have to determine the penalty. It could

         22  be a fine, a suspension, removal from the program.

         23                 But I can't say definitively what it

         24  would be because each case is handled on a

         25  case-by-case basis after the company comes to the
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          2  hearing and gives their defense.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: What

          4  violations would they get?

          5                 MR. HABERMAN: Not taking a credit

          6  card would be one. Not taking to the location

          7  requested by the consumer could be another one.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: And what would

          9  happen with the money that they spent, the $130?

         10                 MR. HABERMAN: Well, if it is a

         11  licensee and the Judge determined that it was

         12  improper, we would most likely order the tow truck

         13  company to give restitution to the consumer.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: You can have a

         15  copy of this.

         16                 MR. HABERMAN: Okay, thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Council Member

         18  Spigner.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Yes, one last

         20  question.

         21                 Are we still having problems with

         22  companies setting up multiple names, bogus

         23  locations, which are not really conducted -- they

         24  are not really conducting businesses from the

         25  locations that the license calls for?
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          2                 MR. HABERMAN: We do have those

          3  problems, and as I said earlier, of those 140

          4  violations, some of them are when we are out

          5  inspecting for one reason and happened to find a

          6  DARP violation. We do find those and they are issued

          7  violations and set for hearings and those would be

          8  within those 140, but it does exist.

          9                 The biggest problem that we find is

         10  companies sharing space.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: But it should

         12  be considered a serious violation, if one company

         13  has two or three names, because that gives them an

         14  advantage over sometime trying to operate

         15  legitimately.

         16                 MR. HABERMAN: Right.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Also, how do

         18  you determine that the vehicles are being towed to

         19  the address listed by the license holder?

         20                 Do you do any kind of check on that?

         21  Any kind of review to ensure that the integrity of

         22  the process is being adhered to?

         23                 MR. HABERMAN: I don't think that has

         24  been a huge problem that I know of.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Well, it
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          2  wouldn't be a problem. If I am listing a location of

          3  my business on Fulton Street and I am taking my cars

          4  to, you know, Hart Street, that should be a

          5  violation, shouldn't it?

          6                 MR. HABERMAN: It would be a

          7  violation.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER:  The license

          9  address presumes the required space, the required

         10  capacity, required all of the other portions of the

         11  --

         12                 MR. HABERMAN: Well, when we go out

         13  and we look at the yard, if a consumer complained

         14  that their car was brought to a different location

         15  other than where the business' license was we would

         16  investigate it, but I don't think it has been a huge

         17  problem, the biggest problem is sharing space.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Thank you very

         20  much.

         21                 I am going to ask that somebody stay

         22  to hear the other speakers that are speaking so that

         23  you can take this back and, you know, have the

         24  answers for our next meeting.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 MR. HABERMAN: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Okay, I would

          4  like to call Ronald Sherman, Warren Prosky, Peter

          5  Cunningham, Joe Pross, and Victor Chiofolo up.

          6                 Is there anybody staying from the

          7  Administration?

          8                 MR. SHERMAN: Good afternoon,

          9  Chairwoman Koslowitz, Council Members. My name is

         10  Ron Sherman, I am President of Metropolitan Taxicab

         11  Board of Trade, a 44-year-old association

         12  representing roughly 20 percent of the taxi

         13  industry. Our 17-fleet operating garages operate

         14  more than 2,000 yellow medallion taxis which are

         15  driven by approximately 8,000 drivers.

         16                 I thank you for the opportunity to

         17  testify this afternoon regarding the Directed

         18  Accident Response Program. As you will hear from a

         19  few fleet operators here this afternoon, the DARP

         20  Program is not working in the manner that it was

         21  intended.

         22                 According to the rules, cab drivers

         23  have the right to instruct DARP approved towing

         24  operators to bring the taxicab back to its garage of

         25  origin. Our drivers are being told by the towing
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          2  companies that the DARP tow truck in question has a

          3  busy schedule and cannot accommodate such a request.

          4                 As a result, the DARP tow trucks are

          5  taking our fleet owners cabs to their own holding

          6  pens, the towing companies choose not to notify our

          7  cab owners when their cabs have been towed, nor do

          8  they tell them where they have been taken.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Can you

         10  explain that?

         11                 MR. SHERMAN: The DARP operators, the

         12  tow trucks themselves, when they take our vehicle in

         13  the case of an accident, they do not bring it back

         14  to our place and they bring it to their place and we

         15  are not notified.

         16                 The towing companies do this even

         17  though in most cases our fleet owner's phone numbers

         18  are clearly painted on the back of the cab. Our

         19  fleet owners are forced to spend valuable time

         20  calling the local police precinct and searching

         21  towing companies' records just to find out where

         22  their cabs ended up. Not only is this process a

         23  lengthy one, it also becomes an expensive one for

         24  our fleet owners. Here is why: Because most DARP

         25  approved tow truck operators only have office hours
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          2  from nine to five on weekdays. Our cabs are often

          3  out of service for anywhere from one shift to the

          4  entire weekend, depending upon when the cab is

          5  towed.

          6                 In the case of one of our owners here

          7  today, it took him 22 days to get his vehicle back.

          8                 In addition, these towing companies

          9  charge us what they call holding fees. This is a fee

         10  for vehicles which is stored in their towing pens.

         11  As I stated, our cabs are often towed during the

         12  evening and on weekends and therefore we cannot get

         13  our cabs back immediately, and on the time it takes

         14  for our owners to call through every towing company

         15  in the local area searching for their cabs, and all

         16  of a sudden fleet owners are forced to pay DARP

         17  approved towing companies hundreds of dollars in

         18  towing fees and holding costs for each of the cabs.

         19                 If the DARP tow driver on the scene

         20  followed DARP rules, we would not be having such a

         21  problem.

         22                 Therefore, we would like to recommend

         23  a potential solution to the Committee. We suggest

         24  that a sticker be created and placed on the cab that

         25  clearly states one specific DARP rule, that DARP tow

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            41

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  operators are required to bring the cab back to the

          3  address of the garage listed on the back of the

          4  cab's rate card, regardless of the time or the day

          5  of the week.

          6                 I hope that you will consider a

          7  solution as you listen firsthand to some of the

          8  problems our fleet owners are having with the DARP

          9  system.

         10                 Thank you for your time. I will now

         11  let you hear from a few of our owners.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Okay. Before

         13  we do that, I just want to ask you, when this is

         14  occurring, is there police on the scene of the

         15  accident?

         16                 MR. SHERMAN: Yes, Ma'am. Yes, the

         17  police are there. Our driver, or if they end up

         18  calling our dispatchers, we are fleets, we are open

         19  24 hours a day, 365 days a year, so when they call

         20  that there is an accident, we tell our drivers, tell

         21  the tow truck to bring the car back to our place. At

         22  that point, a lot of times they just don't listen.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Okay, thank

         24  you.

         25                 MR. PROSKY: Thank you for the
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          2  opportunity to speak. My name is Warren Prosky. I

          3  operate a taxi fleet in Brooklyn. We operate a fleet

          4  using many reputable tow services. Unfortunately

          5  some tow operators have abused, massaged and

          6  manipulated the rules which govern them. This allows

          7  them to charge higher fees than allowed to take

          8  advantage of us as they hold our cars for ransom.

          9                 Anyone who requires a tow is already

         10  in crisis, the last thing anyone needs is to have a

         11  tow truck operator dictate unreasonable terms to

         12  someone who just wants to get their car back.

         13                 It is interesting how the game is

         14  played. Tow truck operators can pick up cars 24

         15  hours, seven days a week. The office that takes

         16  payment, though, is only open Monday through Friday

         17  from 9:00 to 5:00. After hours, we can't understand

         18  why the dispatcher is not responsible enough to

         19  collect money. As a fleet operator who is required

         20  to double shift our cabs, I find it completely

         21  ridiculous to have to wait up to 48 hours at some

         22  times to recover my cabs, in a business that

         23  services the public, how can I service the public if

         24  I can't get my cab back?

         25                 I wonder why cash is the only method
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          2  that in ten years a tow truck operator has allowed

          3  me to pay him to return my car. Is this their rules

          4  or your rules?

          5                 Tow operators who sign up for a DARP

          6  program should be mandated to have an office open

          7  during the hours that they operate. A tow operator

          8  who refuses to tow an owner's car to the choice

          9  designation, should have his license suspended or

         10  revoked.

         11                 Originally I was not going to share

         12  one of my stories, which is pending a Department of

         13  Consumer Affairs hearing, but after hearing that you

         14  had no statistics, let me share one quick story.

         15                 We had an accident in November of

         16  1998, where our car was parked legally and it was

         17  involved in a multi-car accident. Our car was pushed

         18  onto the sidewalk.

         19                 The driver came out with his cup of

         20  coffee and told us, responsibly told us what

         21  happened, forgetting that there were DARP

         22  regulations we sent our own authorized tow, the one

         23  that we authorized. He got to the scene before the

         24  DARP tow, he was told to leave, he followed the

         25  officer's instructions and left.
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          2                 My driver, with us on the other line,

          3  instructed the police officer, as well as the DARP

          4  tow, that we wanted the car returned to our garage.

          5  They refused.

          6                 The other situation is that three

          7  other cars were also involved in this accident. It

          8  took two hours and 28 minutes, with my driver

          9  sitting with the car on the sidewalk, for the car to

         10  be taken from Upper Manhattan to a Queens location.

         11                 We tried to get the car back the

         12  following morning. We, meaning myself, so it is a

         13  firsthand conversation. I asked what the charges

         14  were based on the blank receipt that I got, I was

         15  told it will take a while to figure it out.

         16                 An hour later I called back and I

         17  said I still would like to get my cab back. I

         18  identified the cab again, I asked for the charges.

         19  The charges were read to me, I asked specifically

         20  what this charge was for, realizing that I had an

         21  eyewitness, my driver there. The charges were

         22  ridiculous, based on what I was told. Because my car

         23  could have been returned to me immediately and we

         24  would have paid the set fee.

         25                 I then asked what method can I pay
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          2  you? The answer was cash only. And I know that is

          3  not your rules, that is their rules, all right?

          4                 I also asked, because they were

          5  safeguarding my car in their storage facility, what

          6  the condition of the car is and the dispatcher said

          7  I will have to get back to you. Calls me back and

          8  says it is not drivable.

          9                 I then hired one of my reputable tow

         10  firms to go pick up that car, I don't have my own

         11  tow truck. Somebody drove the car to the tow truck,

         12  handed him the keys, I handed them $177 and was

         13  overcharged. This is the practice that takes place

         14  every time you have a not reputable DARP.

         15                 I have had DARP tows, anywhere in the

         16  City of New York they returned my car properly. I

         17  have had tows on the highways. We have charges with

         18  these companies, they responsibly call your garage,

         19  say we have your car, would you like it returned and

         20  of course we say yes and we are more than happy to

         21  pay them.

         22                 Thank you for your time, I will

         23  answer any questions you have.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: You got your

         25  car back. You reported all of this, the one that you
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          2  felt --

          3                 MR. PROSKY: I reported it in November

          4  of '98, Consumer Affairs is waiting to give me a

          5  date, I guess it is March now. So some time before

          6  the end of the year I assume I am going to have the

          7  hearing on four charges, being overcharged, not

          8  giving the proper receipt, having the tow truck

          9  operator not return the car to my facility, and not

         10  taking my credit card.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Those are, you

         12  know, very serious charges. I mean, obviously that

         13  is going against the very law that we enacted.

         14                 MR. PROSKY: By the way, if you are

         15  reputable the system works. But there are a lot of

         16  people that are not reputable.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Thank you.

         18                 Next, please.

         19                 MR. CHIOFOLO: Good afternoon, Madame

         20  Chair, Committee members, my name is Victor

         21  Chiofolo, I am the General Manager of Ann Service

         22  Corporation, located at 21st Street and Seventh

         23  Avenue. We are a 77-car yellow medallion fleet. We

         24  also happen to own not-for-hire tow truck for the

         25  exclusive use of servicing our own vehicles.
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          2                 Given our location and that most

          3  accidents involving my vehicles occur in Manhattan,

          4  if a tow is required, my truck can usually be there

          5  on the scene quicker than a DARP truck.

          6                 I will outline three experiences

          7  which are representative of the various conundrums

          8  that occur and the adverse affect and additional

          9  expense that are incurred by an operation like mine.

         10                 Responding to an accident on 34th and

         11  Sixth Avenue, my tow arrived on the scene prior to

         12  the DARP truck. Even though the DARP truck did not

         13  arrive for another 30 minutes, the police would not

         14  allow us to tow our own car. We were forced to incur

         15  the cost of the DARP tow.

         16                 The next incident involved an

         17  accident at 14th Street and Sixth Avenue where the

         18  DARP truck was already on the scene when my driver

         19  called.

         20                 However, he would not tow the cab to

         21  my location seven blocks away. Instead, taking it to

         22  his shop in Brooklyn, since this occurred late at

         23  night, I not only incurred the additional mileage

         24  charge, but also a nice storage fee, and still had

         25  to send my truck to Brooklyn the next day to
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          2  retrieve a car that was originally disabled seven

          3  blocks from my garage. In this case, especially

          4  because it was seven blocks away, there wouldn't

          5  have been any additional fee even if they could

          6  charge mileage.

          7                 My last example is an accident by the

          8  Holland Tunnel, again, minutes from my garage, where

          9  the driver was taken to the hospital, the cab was

         10  towed, I received no notification.

         11                 The next day my driver informed me as

         12  to what happened. Calling the precinct, I was told

         13  that the officer who took the report was off for two

         14  days and his report could not be found. No one knew

         15  which tow company took my car. They gave me the

         16  number for DARP Administration, they couldn't help

         17  me either.

         18                 Three days after the accident, I

         19  located the tow operator. I paid for the tow, three

         20  days of storage. A simple phone call from the scene

         21  by the officer would have had my truck there in

         22  minutes.

         23                 If the DARP program is to be

         24  considerate of fleets like mine, the police on the

         25  scene can call us, allowing us to send our own
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          2  not-for-hire tow truck, if we have one, and if not,

          3  instruct the DARP tow to take it back to our

          4  location.

          5                 I would be happy to answer any

          6  questions.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Did you

          8  complain to Consumer Affairs about any of these?

          9                 MR. CHIOFOLO: No. In none of these

         10  cases did I make any complaints. You will find that

         11  normally we don't, and it is not for being lax, it

         12  is that we are in the business that we are in, which

         13  is operating taxis, we want to get them back as

         14  quickly as we can, and we do everything we can when

         15  something like this happens to affect that end and

         16  then we just go about our business. Which is why the

         17  opportunity to speak at this hearing is greatly

         18  appreciated, because it happens on a routine basis.

         19                 I must say most accidents don't

         20  require a tow, most of them are quite minor. I put

         21  together these three anecdotal examples to show you

         22  where the police are not effective. If the police

         23  would just instruct the DARP driver on the scene to

         24  make a phone call or have the police phone our

         25  operations, as Mr. Sherman testified we are all open
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          2  24 hours a day.

          3                 In the case of the accident where the

          4  car was taken to Brooklyn, I had the opportunity the

          5  next day to discuss this with the tow operator

          6  owner, and he told me what his problem was, which I

          7  was sympathetic to. You might want to consider this.

          8  He said you are telling me that you have a manager

          9  on duty 24 hours a day and you have cash. He said

         10  many times my driver goes to the location and there

         11  is no one there to pay him, and then he has to bring

         12  it back to his location anyway. So, if the police

         13  could be more involved in this, if Captain Defilippo

         14  is in charge of this program, if he could make sure

         15  that his personnel, the officers on the scene, are

         16  aware, especially with taxi fleets, that most of us

         17  run 24 hour a day offices that have mechanics, that

         18  have managers on duty, all of this can be

         19  eliminated. As Mr. Prosky testified to, most of the

         20  operators are legitimate.

         21                     CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Do your

         22  drivers get a bill of rights?

         23                 MR. CHIOFOLO: A bill of rights

         24  regarding?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Their rights
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          2  about towing?

          3                 MR. CHIOFOLO: To a tow? No.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Never?

          5                 MR. CHIOFOLO: But they are instructed

          6  to call us from the scene.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Okay, I am

          8  going to read you the first sentence.

          9                 You have a right to direct the towing

         10  company to tow the vehicle to any location within

         11  the boundaries of New York City.

         12                 MR. CHIOFOLO: It is a difficult

         13  situation --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: I will give

         15  you a copy, you can make copies and give them out to

         16  your drivers.

         17                 MR. CHIOFOLO: It is a difficult

         18  situation when you are a cab driver and the police

         19  are there saying I have no control over where the

         20  tow truck takes you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: It's a shame.

         22  It is really a shame that, you know, we make laws

         23  and nobody obeys the laws, and you know, then

         24  everybody starts crying.

         25                 MR. SHERMAN: Madame Chair, if we
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          2  could get a copy of that I would appreciate it, we

          3  would distribute it to our membership.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Absolutely.

          5  Absolutely. I mean, the tow companies are supposed

          6  to give you that when they come to the scene.

          7                 But I would also appreciate, if you

          8  would make your complaints to the Consumer Affairs

          9  because it helps us in overseeing the laws and to

         10  see if they are working or they are not working. So,

         11  I would appreciate it if you could do that.

         12                 MR. SHERMAN: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: You could do

         14  it on line, on the computer.

         15                 MR. PROSS: Good afternoon. My name is

         16  Joe Pross, I operate a taxi fleet in Brooklyn. It is

         17  a little story, what has happened to my cab. It was

         18  picked up on Van Wyck Expressway. The car broke

         19  down, it was no accident, nothing happened like

         20  this. So, by the time the driver went to call the

         21  taxi fleet for assistance, and he was only 15

         22  minutes away from our garage, he comes back, the car

         23  disappear. We went to look for the car, we cannot

         24  find the car. We send the driver and the manager to

         25  make police report. They say we cannot make police
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          2  report because we have to wait for few days.

          3                 We did. We wait for few days, then we

          4  make police report. The short story, we cannot find

          5  our car for 22 days. We went down, looked all

          6  around, we know the area, we are located there, 22

          7  days. After 22 days somebody from Mystic Tow

          8  (phonetic) or something, you know, they call us up,

          9  they got our car.

         10                 So, when we went down there they ask

         11  us to pay $250, and we call Police Department,

         12  because it was done, police report. So then Police

         13  Department take over. They tell who picked it up,

         14  the cab, and after 72 hours in JFK Airport. What we

         15  did, we pay $70 to take the car back to our garage.

         16  So, so far I lost like two shifts, 22 days, it's

         17  about 44 shifts, over $4,000.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: But that is on

         19  a different program. That's arterial. That is a

         20  different program than the DARP program. That is

         21  arterial highways.

         22                 MR. PROSS: Many times, you know, we

         23  deal with that program too, always. I just tell this

         24  little story, the car disappeared from the highway

         25  for 22 days, and we knew somebody took the car, it
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          2  cannot be stolen because the car was broke down. And

          3  nobody called the telephone number on the back of

          4  the car. We looked all over. We went to Mystic, we

          5  went to a couple of companies around to ask about

          6  it, then after 22 days they call us up, the car was

          7  parked behind two buildings, you know?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Right.

          9                 Did you call Consumer Affairs?

         10                 MR. PROSS: No, we didn't.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Well, it's

         12  very important that you do because then if there are

         13  people, you know, you have some hard-working people

         14  here that are looking to make a living just like you

         15  are, and if there are a few bad apples in the bunch,

         16  let's get rid of the bad apples that aren't obeying

         17  the law that are doing things.

         18                 So, by you complaining you are

         19  helping us in overseeing that the law is being

         20  carried out and in the long run you are going to be

         21  helping yourself that you won't lose your car

         22  hopefully for 22 days ever again.

         23                 So, you know, it is important.

         24                 MR. CHIOFOLO: If there is something

         25  that I may suggest? If the Committee could help us
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          2  with a way to expedite the complaint? For instance,

          3  Mr. Prosky testified that it is five months later

          4  and he still hasn't gotten anywhere on his

          5  complaint. It is a very lengthy process, if there is

          6  something that can be done to streamline that so

          7  that we could make our complaints and they could be

          8  answered a lot quicker, it would be very helpful.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: That is fine,

         10  and I could tell you that if you feel that if you

         11  want to call my office, I would be more than happy

         12  to check on it and see where it is going.

         13                 Because it is helping me too. It is

         14  helping me, you know, being a part of the Committee,

         15  to see what is happening and what is really going on

         16  and how long is this going on. I want it to move

         17  fast, that is why when the Administration didn't

         18  have answers, I want answers. I mean, I think a

         19  year, over a year is time to have the answers.

         20                 MR. CHIOFOLO: We thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Okay.

         22                 Anybody else?

         23                 MR. CUNNINGHAM: Good afternoon. My

         24  name is Peter Cunningham and I represent Glenties

         25  Leasing Corp. We operate 170 medallion cabs from our
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          2  Bronx garage. We own our own non-for-hire tow truck

          3  and use that tow truck to retrieve vehicles when

          4  they break down or are involved in traffic

          5  accidents.

          6                 Certain restrictions prohibit us from

          7  picking up our vehicles on various highways or when

          8  the police have issued a tow through DARP.

          9                 My testimony centers on instances

         10  when we are prohibited from picking up our vehicle

         11  with our own tow truck. Primarily my concern rests

         12  with the differences in what we have been charged by

         13  license towing operators.

         14                 The Department of Consumer Affairs

         15  has established legal limits on how much towing

         16  operators can charge. It seems certain tow operators

         17  charge rates that exceed the legal limits.

         18                 I have paid these excessive charges

         19  in the past in order to get my vehicle back, charges

         20  such as double tows, preparation charges, clean-up

         21  fees, or giving towing operators gray areas to

         22  inflate towing charges.

         23                 I am held hostage by these operators

         24  to pay inflated charges because I need to get my

         25  vehicle back.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            57

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2                 For example, I have a complaint

          3  pending with the Department of Consumer Affairs,

          4  over an excessive towing charge.

          5                 Earlier this year one of my vehicles

          6  was involved in an accident near the intersection of

          7  Bowery and Delancy in Manhattan.

          8                 The police called for a tow and DARP

          9  dispatched the towing service to the scene.

         10                 My vehicle was towed from the scene

         11  approximately five miles to the tow operator's

         12  location in Brooklyn after he was told to tow my

         13  vehicle back to my Bronx location.

         14                 Normally the charge would run

         15  anywhere between $75 and $125, however, we were

         16  charged $245. I have made photocopies of the bills

         17  and everything.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: This is

         19  pending right now?

         20                 MR. CUNNINGHAM: Yes, I have it

         21  pending right now.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: If you find

         23  that you get overcharged, please send it to me, to

         24  my office, and you know, I will expedite it. Also,

         25  it will give me the information that I am looking
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          2  for, so we can get to the bottom of this, and either

          3  make this work or not make it work.

          4                 Okay.

          5                 MR. CUNNINGHAM: Other than that, I

          6  guess when you do file a complaint, it is a very

          7  lengthy, arduous process. In May of '97 I filed a

          8  complaint with DCA, and it wasn't heard until

          9  February of 1998. So, it gives a towing operator who

         10  might be operating on the outskirts of legality more

         11  opportunity to hurt consumers. You know, not just

         12  fleet owners like myself, but anybody that breaks

         13  down on a City street or on a highway.

         14                 Thank you very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Okay, but like

         16  I say, if you feel that something is unfair, you can

         17  call my office also.

         18                 MR. CUNNINGHAM: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Norman

         20  Teitler. Richard Siegel. Matthew Lynch.  Josh

         21  Shimoni, and Al D'Andrea.

         22                 MR. TEITLER: Good afternoon. My name

         23  is Norman Teitler, I am the Executive Director of

         24  the Metropolitan New York Towing and Autobody

         25  Association.
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          2                 What is the private towing industry

          3  of New York? We are citizens of the City of New

          4  York. We are taxpayers of the City of New York. We

          5  are voters in New York City. We are employers and

          6  business owners, without whom this City could not

          7  function.

          8                 We ask that the Council not hold the

          9  towing industry in contempt, ignore our rightful

         10  needs, forget that we provide an emergency service,

         11  just like the Police and Fire Departments and refuse

         12  to allow us to earn a profit so we can adequately

         13  compensate our employees and pay our bills.

         14                 It is wrong, improper, prejudicial

         15  and totally bias for this Council and the City to

         16  apply a double standard to the private towing

         17  industry, as opposed to every other towing performed

         18  by the City of New York.

         19                 Why are you preventing us from

         20  earning a living? There are few laws that have more

         21  impact on business than those laws which regulate

         22  the prices that may be charged for goods and

         23  services.

         24                 On January 1st, 1996, the United

         25  States Congress established the authority of state
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          2  and local governments to regulate the price charged

          3  by tow trucks, when the services rendered at the

          4  request of a law enforcement officer or in any other

          5  situation where the towing service is provided

          6  without the consent of the vehicle owner?

          7                 During the congressional debate, it

          8  was made clear that any prices for non-consensual

          9  towing regulated by a municipality must be, and I

         10  quote, compensatory and reasonable.

         11                 This Council set a $65 DARP rate

         12  ceiling on the prices towing companies can charge.

         13  However, that rate ceiling was arbitrarily set and

         14  private industry can prove that $65 is not a

         15  compensatory and reasonable rate.

         16                 This Committee should schedule a

         17  further public hearing with necessary financial

         18  data, including costs of operation, reasonable

         19  profit margins return on investment, et cetera, can

         20  be taken, so that a determination of a reasonable

         21  rate for non-consent towing can be set.

         22                 My office deals with the Department

         23  of Consumer Affairs regularly. I have a report that

         24  was prepared for you today that was read that said

         25  there is 163 towing companies active on the DARP
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          2  list. As of this morning, there is 210 companies. If

          3  the agency that governs the program can lose 47

          4  companies in their own agency, how are we expected,

          5  both industry and the Council, for them to be able

          6  to understand what our needs are and govern this

          7  program?

          8                 There is a company in the Bronx that

          9  was on DARP in every zone in the Bronx and in

         10  Manhattan, that has been out of business for eight

         11  months. They don't have one tow truck. They have

         12  been receiving DARP calls and having people pick up

         13  their DARP calls for the last eight months. I have

         14  written letters, more than three letters, to

         15  Commissioner Polonetski, I have spoken personally

         16  with the Police Department, after eight months,

         17  finally after the Association's effort, we turned in

         18  -- because we put pressure -- we turned in the

         19  medallions this morning from that company that was

         20  sitting in some office some place. So, finally after

         21  eight months private industry will get that company

         22  off DARP.

         23                 When I don't own a company and have

         24  no trucks, I am going to rip off everybody I can,

         25  because I am out of business. If the agency who,
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          2  private industry who tries to make towing

          3  professional comes to and can't resolve problems,

          4  where are we supposed to go?

          5                 We have written letters to every

          6  member of this Council. I didn't get a reply for one

          7  person -- oh, yes, I am sorry. I got one reply from

          8  a member of this Committee who told me towing is

          9  governed by the Committee on Transportation.

         10                 I have written I can't tell you how

         11  many letters to Commissioner Polonetsky, with ccs to

         12  numerous people, never received one reply. I have

         13  written letters to the Police Department of which

         14  you have got received copies, with specific examples

         15  of why the program doesn't work.

         16                 Finally, for the first time

         17  yesterday, and now I didn't realize that you sent my

         18  letters over to the Police Department, I had a

         19  captain, lieutenant and two sergeants visiting my

         20  office yesterday to interview me on the DARP program

         21  and my letters.

         22                 Now, whether my letters prompted that

         23  or your sending my letters prompted that, I don't

         24  know, and it was none of the people who sat in this

         25  room today. But I had a captain and other officers
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          2  visit me.

          3                 They, after hearing why we are

          4  writing the letters, came up with the belief, this

          5  is from officers, this is not a PO, this is a

          6  Captain and other officers of equal stature, that

          7  they can't understand for themselves why the program

          8  can operate, why an accident management program can

          9  operate in Nassau County and in Westchester County,

         10  and it cannot operate in the City of New York. And

         11  maybe it can't operate because maybe every car

         12  should be towed. Maybe we shouldn't put, if it can't

         13  be safely driven, and leave it up to police officers

         14  who may then decide, well, it can be safely driven

         15  five feet but it can't be safely driven 25 miles but

         16  I don't have time because my sergeant is yelling at

         17  me because there is a burglary in progress two

         18  blocks away, so let any chaser take the car.

         19                 Chasing, which we sat long and hard

         20  -- I have been around for awhile now, I know every

         21  member of this Committee who has been on this

         22  Committee for any length of time -- industry has

         23  changed. There has not been a person injured, or a

         24  death or a serious tow truck accident in almost two

         25  years in this City.
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          2                 That didn't only happen because this

          3  Council passed some laws, or the Police Department

          4  is enforcing it. It happened because private

          5  industry decided to become more professional. And it

          6  is very hard to remain professional when you don't

          7  give us a rate that compensates us and allows us to

          8  pay employees who are responsible.

          9                 The Department of Consumer Affairs

         10  does not answer our questions. This Committee has to

         11  give us some answers. The Police Department does not

         12  answer our questions. Is it surprising that the

         13  program doesn't work, or that chasing has returned

         14  when we receive no support, when we get no help?

         15  Must the towing industry revert to the levels of

         16  years ago and tie up the City before our justified

         17  concerns are held? Hopefully not.

         18                 First and foremost, this Council must

         19  raise the DARP towing and storage rates so towing

         20  companies can earn a living. Without allowing

         21  businesses to survive and be profitable, you will

         22  condemn any program that you set in motion.

         23                 As a last note, no matter what law

         24  this Council and the Mayor signs, if the Police

         25  Department governs that law or program, and the
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          2  Police Department doesn't care whether the program

          3  works, it will never work. And whether it is towing,

          4  it's the taxicab industry, it is any other industry,

          5  if private industry doesn't want the law to work, it

          6  will never work either. This is a triangle -

          7  government, the enforcement end and the performance

          8  end. But if the performance end cannot earn a

          9  living, and Mr. Siegel is going to follow me to

         10  explain why we believe that, cannot earn a living,

         11  then you are going to have violations of the program

         12  because in the real world, whether it is Mr.

         13  Furniture Maker, Mr. Electronic Store, Mr. Chinese

         14  Laundry or a towing company, before they go out of

         15  business they are going to try to do whatever they

         16  can to stay in business.

         17                 Does the program need changes? Yes.

         18  Do we need massive changes? If it stays, yes, it

         19  does. Maybe as Councilman Sabini suggested, we

         20  should reconsider the SARD program which operated

         21  for a long time. But as you notice, there is not one

         22  person from -- and I didn't turn around again, but I

         23  don't think there is anybody in this room left from

         24  the Police Department. When the SARD program was

         25  before this Council, no one from the Police
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          2  Department came and testified. And it is very hard

          3  when, Madame Chair, you asked questions about

          4  statistics, why can I know there is 210 DARP

          5  companies? Why can I tell you, if you asked me I

          6  could tell you in less than one hour all of the DARP

          7  accidents that were DARP calls last year, I could

          8  tell you each company how many calls they got. That

          9  is a printout. We receive it from the Police

         10  Department every month.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: You are

         12  absolutely right on that. And as you heard me say

         13  before, I am very upset that we could not get

         14  answers and that is why we are having another

         15  hearing at the end of June to get those answers.

         16                 MR. TEITLER: Okay.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Are the number

         18  of calls higher this year, than they were of the

         19  DARP SARD last year?

         20                 MR. TEITLER: You can't take the

         21  Citywide as a -- Chairwoman, I spoke about this. You

         22  can't take the City as an entity because SARD didn't

         23  operate Citywide.

         24                 If you go to Staten Island and you

         25  compare the numbers in, say, November of 1998, as
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          2  opposed to November of 1997, because SARD was

          3  operating in Staten Island during that entire month,

          4  we ran the numbers. There was slightly more calls on

          5  SARD. Not appreciable. Maybe 210 as opposed to 201.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: How do you get

          7  these numbers?

          8                 MR. TEITLER: We went through one

          9  month and counted every single call in the 120, 122,

         10  and 123 precincts which covers the entire Borough of

         11  Staten Island. But we have to remember something

         12  else that is not figured in there. On the SARD, the

         13  companies were allowed to respond immediately to the

         14  scene of the accident legally off the police radio,

         15  so many accidents never called a SARD company

         16  because there was no requirement. The police

         17  officers when they would arrive already found the

         18  tow truck, the proper, legitimate tow truck already

         19  on the scene, so there were no calls through central

         20  to obtain a SARD tower.

         21                 So, the numbers are slightly higher,

         22  but the number of times of accidents would be great,

         23  and that is the difference. Under SARD, private

         24  industry was responding and picking up many more

         25  cars at many more accidents so chasing ended. Now we
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          2  are in a different program, maybe the old program

          3  that existed, but the police officers are not DARP'g

          4  all the cars and they are allowing chasing to exist.

          5  And one of the reason chasing exists is you can't,

          6  at $65 a tow, you cannot earn enough money. And we

          7  are in this fight right now all of a sudden this

          8  week -- just so Madame Chair knows, the consumer's

          9  bill of rights is now printed on the rear of every

         10  tow slip used in the DARP program. I can tell you

         11  every member of our association has a tow slip which

         12  has the mandated $65 rate on the front, and the

         13  entire bill of rights printed on the real, multiple

         14  copies, exactly as outlined by the Commissioner of

         15  Consumer Affairs.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Do they

         17  actually hand the person the bill of rights?

         18                 MR. TEITLER: At the scene of every

         19  accident the towing operator fills out a tow slip.

         20  He doesn't have all of the information, like you

         21  don't know how long the trip is going to be and the

         22  exact charges, but he knows the information, whose

         23  car it is. He gives the person, if they are at the

         24  scene, a copy of that tow slip, one copy, on the

         25  rear of that tow slip, because the person signs it,
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          2  on the rear of that tow slip is the consumer's bill

          3  of rights. If the person goes to the hospital, then

          4  they give it to the police officer, because it is

          5  the police officer's responsibility to make sure

          6  that a copy of it arrives at the hospital so that

          7  the person when they are discharged, whether it is

          8  from the emergency room or at some subsequent time,

          9  can know where their vehicle is so they can either

         10  go retrieve it or have a family member at least see

         11  what is doing.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Can you do me

         13  a favor and send me a copy of how it looks?

         14                 MR. TEITLER: Oh, absolutely. I will

         15  fax it over tomorrow to your office and staff, okay?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Thank you.

         17                 MR. TEITLER: Thank you.

         18                 MR. SIEGEL: Good afternoon. My name

         19  is Richard Siegel and I am affiliated with the

         20  Metropolitan New York Towing and Auto Body

         21  Association.

         22                 My question is, if the City charges

         23  consumers $150 for towing a vehicle parked illegally

         24  on the streets, how can you justify a $65 DARP

         25  towing fee when removing a vehicle from an accident
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          2  scene is more complex and dangerous?

          3                 The $150 fee is $85 more than the

          4  hook-up fee allowed for DARP vehicles, plus

          5  consumers must also pay a parking summons.

          6                 For the $150 fee, the City tow truck

          7  simply drops its hook, lifts the vehicle from the

          8  front, drives away with the vehicle on the rear

          9  wheels, all within two to three minutes.

         10                 The City's tow trucks do not have to

         11  overturn vehicles, pull vehicles off embankments,

         12  wait at the scenes for emergency equipment to

         13  disperse, nor do they have to clean-up debris.

         14  Accident vehicles often require special equipment

         15  and have to be wheeled after the flatbed, because

         16  the rear wheels of the accident vehicle no longer

         17  function.

         18                 Why are the City's Sheriff and

         19  Marshals also permitted to charge consumers $150 for

         20  less complex and dangerous towing? In the January

         21  10th, 1995 edition of Newsday, the Director of the

         22  City's Target Tow Operations, Frank Carbone, was

         23  quoted as saying the cost of towing covers the

         24  expense and only the expense. In 1995 it was

         25  determined that the cost to the City was $150 to
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          2  perform the simple type of tow; what do you think it

          3  costs private industry today to tow an accident

          4  vehicle?

          5                 Additionally, the City does not have

          6  to pay insurance on its tow trucks. The cost of

          7  insurance per tow truck averages between $4,500 to

          8  $5,000 per year. At $65 per tow, this means the tow

          9  truck would have to perform 77 DARP tows just to

         10  cover the cost of insurance for that truck.

         11                 Since towing companies must maintain

         12  a minimum of two trucks to participate in the

         13  program, a company must respond to 154 DARP

         14  assignments just to cover the cost of insurance.

         15  What about the cost of the equipment where an

         16  average tow truck costs approximately $50,000,

         17  maintenance, rent, utilities, salaries and licensing

         18  fees that an owner must also pay.

         19                 The Transportation Committee of the

         20  City Council determined in 1988 that private towers

         21  removing vehicles that were blocking driveways, and

         22  in 1991 the vehicles parked illegally on private

         23  property may charge $100. Although the $100 fee

         24  included the first three days of storage, most

         25  vehicles were redeemed the same day.
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          2                 The Transportation Committee and the

          3  City Council saw fit 11 years ago to permit a higher

          4  rate for this type of tow, yet this Committee has

          5  limited removing accident vehicles to $65, which

          6  also includes the first day of storage.

          7                 How did the Committee conceive the

          8  $65 fee? Was a cost analysis performed? And if the

          9  City claims it costs $150 to perform a tow, charging

         10  consumers $150, permits the Sheriffs and Marshals to

         11  charge consumers $150 per tow, permits private

         12  towing industry to charge $100 for private towing of

         13  block removal of driveways, for the most dangerous

         14  and complex type of tow a vehicle, a vehicle

         15  involved in an accident, the Committee only permits

         16  a maximum fee of $65, which also includes the first

         17  day of storage.

         18                 Private towers and the Sheriff are

         19  required to accept credit cards for convenience of

         20  the consumers, why aren't the City Sheriffs required

         21  to accept credit cards?

         22                 During the past Christmas season the

         23  City booted vehicles for $75, but private industry

         24  is limited to $25. These are just examples of the

         25  City saying do as I say, not as I do.
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          2                 We are also consumers, where are our

          3  concerns being addressed? A $65 fee is arbitrary and

          4  capricious. The City has determined that the cost of

          5  a simple tow is $150. It is asked that the City stop

          6  the double standers and at a minimum permit private

          7  towers to charge rates comparable to what the City

          8  charges.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 MR. LYNCH: Good afternoon. My name is

         11  Matthew Lynch. I am the Manager of Boscano Auto

         12  Collision.  The City states that DARP and ROTOW

         13  participants must allow consumers access to their

         14  vehicles, we have no problem with this.

         15                 The Department of Consumer Affairs

         16  goes further and states in the rules that we must

         17  allow consumers to remove items of personal property

         18  without paid our towing and storage fees.

         19                 The Sheriff, the Marshal and even the

         20  City impound yards, do not permit anyone to remove

         21  items of personal property until all fees have been

         22  paid. Why the disparity?

         23                 No one is going to refuse a person

         24  retrieving medication, a wallet or a purse, that

         25  should be the extent under the law until the current
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          2  charges are paid.

          3                 When consumers remove items of

          4  personal property, the result is usually the vehicle

          5  is abandoned at our premises. We have provided a

          6  service on behalf of the City and the Police

          7  Department and have not gotten paid.

          8                 In most cases we are forced to place

          9  a lien on the vehicle in order to dispose of it. Not

         10  only have we not been paid for the towing and

         11  storage, we now have to go into our pocket and pay a

         12  lien company to process the paperwork and auction

         13  the vehicle.

         14                 This often means the vehicle will be

         15  sitting at our premises in excess of 90 days. The

         16  fee for towing and storage in almost all cases

         17  exceeds the value of the car. Remember, if a vehicle

         18  has any value, it will be redeemed. After the lien

         19  process and auction has been completed, we can then

         20  tow the vehicle to a salvage yard and maybe collect

         21  $25 to $50 for salvage, which is a minor

         22  compensation compared to the towing and storage

         23  fees.

         24                 If the dismantler comes to me to pick

         25  the vehicle up, most often we will get nothing
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          2  except that we have gotten rid of the vehicle.

          3                 When is the City going to institute

          4  some sort of mechanism for towing companies to get

          5  paid and dispose of unclaimed DARP vehicles?

          6                 A mechanism is in place under the

          7  Rotation Tow Program. If the ROTOW vehicles are

          8  delivered to the pound, the City gives us something

          9  towards towing and storage. When derelict vehicles

         10  are abandoned on the City streets, New York City

         11  Department of Sanitation places a lien with the

         12  Department of Motor Vehicles against the vehicle

         13  owner for the cost of removal and storage of the

         14  vehicle, pursuant to Section 1224 of the New York

         15  State Vehicle and Traffic Law.

         16                 Vehicle owners are then prohibited

         17  from registering any vehicle until the lien has been

         18  satisfied. We are not warehouses. We have provided

         19  services. We only ask that we be paid for our

         20  services and if the owner does not claim their

         21  vehicle, we ask for a mechanism whereby we can

         22  dispose of the vehicle and get paid for the services

         23  we have rendered.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 MR. D'ANDREA: Good afternoon. My name
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          2  is Al D'Andrea, and I am the owner of Ridgewood Auto

          3  Spring.

          4                 It has just been explained to me that

          5  the hook-up fee for any vehicle up to 15,000 pounds

          6  is $65 and $3.50 for each additional mile if towed

          7  to other than my premises.

          8                 Even the Transportation Committee of

          9  the City Council allows arterial highway towers to

         10  charge up to $175 for this type of hook-up and $5.00

         11  for each additional mile and labor, if applicable. A

         12  tow truck that can handle up to 15,000 pounds costs

         13  more to purchase, insure and maintain. The personnel

         14  to operate this size of equipment must possess a

         15  higher category of license and be skilled at removal

         16  of this nature. A driver possessing these skills is

         17  more costly to employ.

         18                 Often towing a large truck requires

         19  additional equipment and personnel. You have

         20  eliminating our charging for extra equipment or

         21  personnel. Arterial highway towers are allowed to

         22  charge up to $50 a quarter hour in certain

         23  situations when additional personnel and/or

         24  equipment is needed. Am I not entitled to be

         25  adequately compensated for the work performed and
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          2  equipment utilized? Large vehicles occupy more space

          3  in my storage facility; shouldn't I be allowed to

          4  charge more storage from day one and also be able to

          5  charge more if the vehicle takes up additional

          6  space?

          7                 Under the previous DARP law the rate

          8  was set at $50 for the hook-up and $3.50 for each

          9  additional mile. DCA created an exception to the law

         10  where vehicles over 4,500 pounds were exempt from

         11  the $50 rate. When you modified the law to $65, DCA

         12  increased the exempt weight from 4,500 pounds to

         13  6,000 pounds. DCA now states that we misunderstood

         14  the meaning of this rule. If this is their answer,

         15  why then was the rule changed from 4,500 pounds to

         16  6,000 pounds, when there is no rate for consensual

         17  towing?

         18                 If this rule did not apply to DARP

         19  towing, there was no need to modify it. When DCA

         20  wrote the Consumer Bill of Rights for DARP vehicles,

         21  the bill states the rates charged for towing and

         22  storage cannot exceed those listed below for

         23  vehicles weighing 6,000 pounds or less. This

         24  language and the DCA rule is understood to mean that

         25  vehicles over 6,000 pounds can exceed the $65 rate.
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          2                 Additionally, this 6,000 pound number

          3  is arbitrary and capricious. The automotive industry

          4  is manufacturing larger vehicles. These vehicles are

          5  heavier and require larger, more costly equipment to

          6  be transported safely and damage-free. Am I not

          7  entitled to be adequately compensated for my

          8  expenditures?

          9                 The City charges higher tolls for

         10  larger vehicles for bridges and tunnels, the City

         11  charges commercial motor vehicle tax based on

         12  weight. In the December 31st, 1998 issue of the

         13  Daily News, there was an article stating that the

         14  Brooklyn Bridge is ill-equipped to handle sport

         15  utility vehicles weighing up to 6,000 pounds.

         16                 The suspension bridge, which is

         17  barred to trucks, currently is equipped to handle

         18  average sized 3,000-pound cars. Most of the tow

         19  trucks on the road today are equipped to handle

         20  these average-sized vehicles weighing 3,000 pounds.

         21  All we are asking is that we be adequately

         22  compensated when larger equipment is required.

         23                 The weight of the vehicle dictates

         24  the size of the equipment to be used. Additionally,

         25  if additional equipment or personnel is required in
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          2  certain situations, we should be permitted to charge

          3  accordingly.

          4                 If the City can charge $150 for

          5  towing a small car, then we should be able to charge

          6  more than $65 for towing a large vehicle or truck.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Council Member

          9  Sabini.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Particularly

         11  subscribed to the last point made, but my question I

         12  guess would be to Mr. Teitler.

         13                 As you remember, Council Member

         14  Weiner and I had a concern years ago about being

         15  able to take the vehicle to the shop you wanted to,

         16  and it was build into the law that there was a $3.50

         17  per mile charge on top of the $65 to take it to the

         18  shop you want. About what percentage of the drivers

         19  do you think take advantage of that? Or the towers,

         20  rather, I shouldn't say the drivers?

         21                 MR. TEITLER: I think that the reality

         22  of an accident is that most people who are in

         23  accidents that require tows, I am not sure where

         24  their vehicle should go to be repaired. Since they

         25  are not asked, and additionally it is illegal to ask
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          2  them to sign an authorization to repair at the scene

          3  of an accident, most explanation is, if you don't

          4  know where you want your car repaired, we can take

          5  it and repair it, you can come tomorrow or the next

          6  day, or we will take it wherever you want.

          7                 I don't think that towers take

          8  advantage of the extra $3.50 a mile to try to go

          9  some place else as opposed to their shop. Because

         10  remember --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: I am talking

         12  about the consumer now.

         13                 MR. TEITLER: I don't think there are

         14  any statistics about that. I believe a few consumers

         15  but I don't think it is a vast bulk.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: A quarter, ten

         17  percent, about?

         18                 MR. TEITLER: I would assume maybe 20

         19  percent of the consumers take advantage --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: We understood

         21  it wasn't going to be a majority when we insist on a

         22  similar provision, but at the same time we felt that

         23  the people that did had every right to, if they had

         24  a friend or an in-law or relative in the business,

         25  that they might want to preserve their property
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          2  rights.

          3                 Would you say that of the 20 percent

          4  that do, that then tack the $3.50 a mile on, that

          5  the $3.50 a mile fee makes it a little more

          6  profitable, or is that a loss leader too?

          7                 MR. TEITLER: It covers an expense.

          8  Because a tow truck is like a taxicab. If I leave my

          9  base of operation -- the taxicabs in Manhattan,

         10  where he is going to pick up fares regularly, and I

         11  say take me to the north end of the Bronx, yes, I

         12  pick up a fare but 90 percent of the time I am

         13  coming back empty.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Right.

         15                 MR. TEITLER: A tow truck almost

         16  invariably, not even 90, 100 percent of the time

         17  basically almost comes back empty because it is rare

         18  for a towing company who is on the DARP list in say

         19  Manhattan or in Queens, he is not going to get

         20  another call in the Bronx because he is not on any

         21  list up there.

         22                 So, the $3.50 covers the expense

         23  because it is the time and fuel, but really is not

         24  taking advantage, the towing companies don't look to

         25  that as the loss leader.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Thank you.

          3                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON LASHER: Councilman

          4  Spigner.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Thank you,

          6  Mr. Chairman.

          7                 I am told by our staff that there is

          8  a lawsuit that you have initiated challenging the

          9  authority of the City to establish these rates?

         10                 MR. TEITLER: There is a lawsuit

         11  currently pending in Supreme Court, New York County.

         12  That was instituted at the end of last year. The

         13  plaintiffs' attorney representing 29 towing

         14  companies on behalf of industry complain that

         15  approximately the six challenges, I am not going to

         16  go into them all, but the challenges are basically

         17  to the rules which were promulgated of the

         18  Commissioner of Consumer Affairs.

         19                 There is a challenge to tow laws

         20  promulgated by this Council because the rules were

         21  mandated by, in order to effectuate the law, you had

         22  to pass a rule. The City has put in a response, they

         23  went back and forth, the judge allowed private

         24  industry to put in an Amicus, friend of the court

         25  brief, which was joined in by the New York State
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          2  Trial Lawyers Association and several other

          3  statewide organizations.

          4                 We are not challenging this Council's

          5  rights to set a rate. What we are challenging is

          6  that the $65 rate doesn't meet the standard that

          7  should have been used.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Then you and

          9  your association are not a part of the lawsuit now

         10  challenging the rates in the court?

         11                 MR. TEITLER: Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: You are not a

         13  part of that?

         14                 MR. TEITLER: No, I am not a

         15  plaintiff. The Association is not a party to the

         16  lawsuit.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Okay.

         18                 Now, let me ask this question: Are

         19  you suggesting, or should Council await the outcome

         20  of that litigation?

         21                 MR. TEITLER: No, what I think should

         22  happen is certain things that are in the lawsuit, we

         23  never know how a judge is going to rule. A judge

         24  could rule favorably against one side, or rule

         25  favorably to the other side.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: A very

          3  profound statement.

          4                 MR. TEITLER: Okay? It's simple.

          5                 I think that staff of this Committee

          6  should sit down with us and see if some of the

          7  things could be worked out before a judge rules,

          8  because possibly then if it can be worked out --

          9  certain items can't be worked out because certain

         10  items go to a total constitutional issue on a

         11  federal basis. But certain things definitely could

         12  be worked out and then that portion of the lawsuit

         13  could be withdrawn as moot.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: As an

         15  individual member of this Council for 25 years, I

         16  don't have an advesarial relationship with you or

         17  your colleagues. I would certainly look forward to

         18  sitting with you or working with you, whether it is

         19  prior to the determination by the judge or after,

         20  because you may not feel that what he, like you

         21  said, he may not give you what equity is all about.

         22                 MR. TEITLER: Right.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: What do you

         24  think is a fair price? I mean, you say $150 is

         25  charged by the City, I believe included in that $150
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          2  price is probably some punitive aspect? You know, as

          3  a deterrent.

          4                 MR. TEITLER: I understand that.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: I mean, as

          6  opposed to just what the costs are.

          7                 MR. TEITLER: We are just saying that

          8  if the City doesn't make money at $150 --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Who said they

         10  don't make money?

         11                 MR. TEITLER: The person who runs the

         12  program, Frank Carbone. He is the one who runs the

         13  program.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Yes, but you

         15  know --

         16                 MR. TEITLER: And I am not saying --

         17  that may encompass a lot of other benefits, his cost

         18  may encompass a lot of other benefits --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Absolutely.

         20                 MR. TEITLER: -- That we don't have to

         21  think about, okay?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Absolutely.

         23  You would probably do very well at $150 a tow.

         24                 MR. TEITLER: I am not saying that

         25  industries must have $150, but that we must have
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          2  more than $65. And by sitting down -- and I am not

          3  going to off the top of my head come up with a

          4  number, but I know that towing companies are hurting

          5  now picking up $65 tows.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: I can recall

          7  when the figure was substantially less than $65, it

          8  was in the early, low twenties.

          9                 MR. TEITLER: That was in the early

         10  eighties. In 1991 --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: We have come

         12  a long way in terms of reflecting inflation and

         13  cost, and we will continue to do that.

         14                 MR. TEITLER: But Councilman Spigner,

         15  since 1991, that was the last time the towing

         16  industry got a rate increase.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Okay.

         18                 MR. TEITLER: And the $65 is actually

         19  a decrease. You waited nine years later, we are

         20  earning less money.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Mr. Teitler.

         22  I respond sympathetically to your plea, or your

         23  concerns, and I will certainly commit to sit with

         24  you and your colleagues to try and work out whatever

         25  --
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          2                 MR. TEITLER: We thank you much.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER:-- Ways the

          4  Council can be helpful.

          5                 MR. TEITLER: We are going to take

          6  advantage of your offer.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: And while we

          8  have also the obligation to protect the interests of

          9  the consumer as well. So, we have to balance the

         10  equities.

         11                 MR. TEITLER: I understand.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Thank you.

         13                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON LASHER: Bernard

         14  Foresta. Peter O'Connell.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: You may

         16  proceed, sir.

         17                 MR. O'CONNELL: Thank you.

         18                 Mr. Lasher, and members of the

         19  Committee, my name is Peter O'Connell, and I

         20  represent the Empire State Towing Recovery

         21  Association.

         22                 I have come here today to talk about

         23  three issue involving the DARP program, and they

         24  have been discussed to various degrees earlier, I

         25  will be brief with my comments.
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          2                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON LASHER: Thank you.

          3                 MR. O'CONNELL: I, too, share Mr.

          4  Teitler's concern about the inadequacy of the rates

          5  under the current program. In my written testimony,

          6  which I will paraphrase, I point out that the $65

          7  flat rate actually is a reduction over what the

          8  earlier rates were.

          9                 It is my understanding that the flat

         10  rate was enacted because DCA complained that certain

         11  towers in the program were abusing prep and mileage

         12  charges.

         13                 The problem that I have with DCA's

         14  position is that they could identify those towers,

         15  for whatever reason, laziness, incompetence,

         16  inability or whatever, they didn't go after them.

         17  Rather they turned to you and said what we need is a

         18  flat rate and by doing that I do feel that you have

         19  punished an entire industry.

         20                 To illustrate how this does

         21  constitute a rate reduction, you should be aware

         22  that the previous rate allowed for storage to be

         23  charged in the first day of towing.

         24                 When you increased the rate from $50

         25  to $65 I think there was a general assumption on the
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          2  City Council, this is revenue neutral to the

          3  industry, the $15 and the flat rate would compensate

          4  for the mileage charges and everything else.

          5                 In point of fact, it is only revenue

          6  neutral if the tow is slightly over two miles in

          7  length. When you get beyond that, towers are behind

          8  what they were under the earlier law. A ten-mile

          9  tow, you lose over $26 from what the law was

         10  previously.

         11                 I think the more serious problem that

         12  has been discussed today does involve the recurrence

         13  of chasing. I was boggled by some of the numbers

         14  that I have heard earlier today, particularly those

         15  by Captain Defilippo.

         16                 He reported that there was some

         17  246,000 accidents in the City last year, of those

         18  138,000 of them -- and these are his numbers -- were

         19  handled by the dispatcher, meaning they didn't

         20  require a tow. That leaves some 108,000 accidents.

         21  And he threw out another number of 78,000. My

         22  question is, are these remaining accidents, accident

         23  damaged vehicles that would require a tow? If so,

         24  they only dispatched 22,000 DARP calls to these

         25  accidents. I think it shows the degree of chasing
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          2  that is going on where possibly as many as three

          3  chasers are responding to every legitimate call.

          4                 This is a conclusion that can be

          5  drawn from those figures, and I think it is

          6  something that you should look into more seriously

          7  with the Department.

          8                 I think the Department was also a

          9  little misleading, and this would be the DCA. When

         10  they spoke in terms of the numbers of hearings that

         11  are presently being entertained by them, last year

         12  they said there was 66 hearings, this year they have

         13  entertained 40 hearings, and he said they come

         14  mostly from the police, the public generally does

         15  not bring these numbers to their attention.

         16                 Unless I am corrected by someone in

         17  the room from the towing industry, and there are

         18  people here, it is my understanding that DCA will

         19  not entertain a complaint from a tower against

         20  another tower who complains that someone is chasing

         21  in that tower's DARP zone. Maybe that is something

         22  that should be examined.

         23                 I don't think that solving this

         24  problem requires any great changes in law. Upstate,

         25  as I mention in the testimony, we don't have a
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          2  problem with chasing. We have some very diligent

          3  state police officers. You show up at the scene of

          4  an accident and you don't belong there, they are

          5  going to paper you in a big way. The police simply

          6  are not enforcing the laws on the books and, again,

          7  you have heard this earlier, Ms. Koslowitz, you have

          8  indicated yourself you want more answers from them,

          9  and I think that would be where we should start. You

         10  know, they simply have to start enforcing the laws

         11  that are out there.

         12                 My remaining comments, and I will

         13  address them very briefly, I have spoken from time

         14  to time before this Committee about the commercial

         15  vehicles, why I feel that they should not be subject

         16  to the DARP program. I happen to agree with the

         17  people from the taxi industry that were here today.

         18  I see no reason why they can't call their own

         19  not-for-hire tow trucks, or to call the towers that

         20  they deal with. They simply can't under the law, but

         21  I think it is something you should look into. I

         22  think they have a valid complaint here.

         23                 One last issue which is not in my

         24  written testimony. It is also my understanding that

         25  DCA is terribly backlogged with people who have
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          2  applied to become participants in a DARP program. I

          3  know of two incidents where people have had

          4  applications pending for over a year, and there is

          5  just an unexplained reason as to why they haven't

          6  been contacted in that period of time. That, too, is

          7  something that I think should be looked into.

          8                 I don't have anything else. I

          9  appreciate the opportunity to testify, and if you

         10  have questions for me, I would be glad to respond.

         11                 Oh, one more thing. Your bill on the

         12  issue of rates. As you know, Ms. Koslowitz, I had

         13  sent you a proposed bill back in January. It may or

         14  may not address all the issues in the most equitable

         15  manner. I think it is definitely a step in the right

         16  direction, and I do ask that you give it your very

         17  serious consideration and you should distribute it

         18  to members of the Committee to see if they would be

         19  interested in going on this with you, if you choose

         20  to put it in.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: I certainly

         22  will.

         23                 MR. O'CONNELL: Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Thank you very

         25  much.
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          2                 Paul Rubenfeld.

          3                 MR. RUBENFELD: Good afternoon, Madame

          4  Chair. I think it is most apropos that this is Oscar

          5  Week, and one of my most favorite films is Dirty

          6  Dozen with Lee Marvin.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: You are dating

          8  yourself.

          9                 MR. RUBENFELD: You may have seen me,

         10  did you see Safir and did you see myself -- did you

         11  watch TV last Sunday night?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: I watched, but

         13  I didn't see any of you.

         14                 MR. RUBENFELD: Oh, okay. Giuliani

         15  would like to know, and Safir would like to know

         16  that you didn't see them.

         17                 Anyway, it is --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: I was too busy

         19  looking at Harrison Ford.

         20                 MR. RUBENFELD: The Dirty Dozen is

         21  what we have here now. I hardly can get involved in

         22  making a testimony, and my testimony will be much

         23  briefer than it has been in the past because I have

         24  gone through 12 years, a dozen years, talking

         25  against DARP, since 1987 was my first testimony, and
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          2  I have been here innumerable times since that time,

          3  and I am here again to testify against DARP.

          4                 I was extremely pleased to see the

          5  cogent observation by John Sabini that maybe we

          6  should rotate by time instead of by incident,

          7  because what he is saying is let's go back to SARD.

          8  That is the major difference between SARD and DARP

          9  and it will never work until we follow Mr. Sabini's

         10  lead.

         11                 Now, I have gone through, to talk

         12  about dating myself, I have gone through with this

         13  issue three Mayors, his Honor Koch, Dinkins,

         14  Giuliani, I have gone through five DCA

         15  commissioners, Ponte, Green, Schrader, Cerullo and

         16  Polonetsky, I have gone through I think three chairs

         17  --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: What about

         19  Maldonado?

         20                 MR. RUBENFELD: Oh, and Maldonado,

         21  six. I stand corrected. You are doing very good

         22  today. Thank you.

         23                 Three chairs, I believe, Greitzer and

         24  Alter and yourself, and I am still here beating the

         25  same drum that is all broken down already, I am
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          2  still doing the same thing.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: And Barbara

          4  has been here through the whole thing.

          5                 MR. RUBENFELD: I do have some written

          6  testimony, but it doesn't look like anybody wants

          7  it. Usually they grab it on my way up. I am sorry I

          8  didn't introduce myself, my name is Paul Rubenfeld,

          9  I am a senior member of the New York City Tow

         10  Advisory Board, I am also a Director of the Gasoline

         11  and Automotive Service Dealers Association, better

         12  known as GASDA. I come before you today to

         13  vehemently oppose the continuation of the DARP and

         14  recommend that the SARD be reinstated and go

         15  Citywide.

         16                 We know that laws affect the future.

         17  With this in mind we predicted that if Intro. 1074-A

         18  was to become law, it would bring back chasing.

         19  Well, it's back, and it's back with a vengeance.

         20                 In the more than 40 years that I have

         21  been involved with towing laws, I have discovered

         22  that much of the law is not technicalities, but

         23  plain old fashioned common sense. The law, like

         24  medicine, should exist for our benefit. This law has

         25  not cured the egregious chasing that its proponents
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          2  had promised.

          3                 Just as a doctor must rely on his

          4  patients' recognition of his symptoms, so you, our

          5  legislators, must rely on the towing industry's

          6  evaluation of why it has become sick and is dying.

          7  Tow laws are enforced by the threat of punishment

          8  that is sanctions and penalties if they are

          9  violated. If the enforcement agencies, the New York

         10  City Police Department and the Department of

         11  Consumer Affairs, do not do their job, then the law

         12  will not be effective.

         13                 The police, for the sake of

         14  expediency, often allow any tow truck to move an

         15  accident vehicle. They frequently fail to DARP a car

         16  because the response is too slow and for other more

         17  insidious reasons. They adamantly refuse to LD6 the

         18  flagrant violators of the tow law, and if they did

         19  give them an LD6, then it would not be adjudicated

         20  at the DCA, where it would go.

         21                 This is our present predicament.

         22  There is little enforcement, and that little

         23  enforcement is badly applied.

         24                 So, we must dismantle DARP and return

         25  to SARD, a system that has successful enforcement
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          2  carried out by its participants.

          3                 This simply is why there is rampant

          4  chasing in the DARP system and virtually no chasing

          5  when SARD is operating.

          6                 There is not a single valid reason

          7  for the discontinuing of SARD one year ago. The

          8  politics that caused its demise has also caused

          9  severe economic damage to our industry, and placed

         10  the public in great danger. It is your job to

         11  protect the public. So, please heed our advice and

         12  go back to SARD.

         13                 In closing, I would like to call your

         14  attention to one sentence that I have taken verbatim

         15  from the legislative findings of the tow law. "The

         16  operation of towing cars and the repair of motor

         17  vehicles, in conjunction with such operations, is a

         18  private business and persons engaged therein are

         19  entitled to a" -- with emphasis -- "fair and

         20  reasonable return therefrom."

         21                 If we use that statement as a guide,

         22  then it is abundantly clear that a substantial raise

         23  in all towing fees are badly needed.

         24                 I am finished.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Thank you very
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          2  much. I just want to say in two and a half years you

          3  will have another chair.

          4                 Murray Rude.

          5                 MR. RUDE: My name is Murray Rude.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: I just want to

          7  start off by wishing you a very happy birthday.

          8                 MR. RUDE: Thank you.

          9                 People want to know why I brag about

         10  it. When you get this far in the tow business, you

         11  got to say thanks to the good Lord.

         12                 Okay, my name is Murray Rude, I am

         13  here representing the Society of Citizens for Free

         14  Choice in Towing, Incorporated.

         15                 My gag order technically is off, I

         16  was hoping for a birthday present, but it hasn't

         17  come from the New York Federal Appeals Court. It

         18  came from the Atlanta Appeals Court, which ruled

         19  about one consent towing is, and I will just get it

         20  on the record, consent towing they said agreed with

         21  federal Judge Denise Cody, that consent towing,

         22  there are no more rates, it is rates upon request.

         23  So whatever rates you are going to discuss now is

         24  for DARP, and that is what I am here about, DARP.

         25                 I have been literally put out of
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          2  business because of DARP. One is this order, patrol

          3  guide, 1988, January 1988, and as a rule it says,

          4  1996, purpose, to direct a responsive designated tow

          5  trucks through the Communication Division to the

          6  scene of the vehicle accident for vehicles which the

          7  reporting officer deems unsafe to be driven, except

          8  that an operator of a vehicle with a gross vehicle

          9  weight of 15,000 pounds or more may choose their own

         10  company to respond.

         11                 Then I would like to go to page --

         12  where is my book? From Denise Cody's ruling in

         13  Federal Court. Which she, on page 26, also ruled,

         14  that a vehicle 15,000 pounds or more is exempt from

         15  the tow law.

         16                 The reason I bring that up, I will

         17  also give a copy of a Police Department document,

         18  the law of 1994, which my drivers carry. See, at my

         19  age, I started to play with crayons, it states a

         20  vehicle over 15,000 is exempt. On the bottom it says

         21  they exempt trucks over 15. We have to go to an

         22  accident scene, and a lot of people in this room, I

         23  have shared bread with a lot of them for a long

         24  time, and they are going to take my half of the loaf

         25  away, so as long as they want my half of a loaf of
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          2  bread, they can't have it. They call somebody that

          3  they are getting a kickback from.

          4                 My customers are now getting these

          5  large stickers that tell them, get your trucks that

          6  that are curbed (sic) call. We will then inform

          7  them, when they have a heavy duty truck, we are

          8  coming over there and tell the officers not to let

          9  them touch the trucks.

         10                 I just had a milk truck in your back

         11  yard, Queens Boulevard and 63rd, lose a body. The

         12  officers were going to DARP it. My driver got there,

         13  my son got there, and they showed the sergeant the

         14  law that they carry, they said what is this? They

         15  said this is the law. He called headquarters, he

         16  says, yeah, that is the law. So, tell me if it is in

         17  the Patrol Guide thing, what is going on?

         18                 I asked that of Captain Defilippo, or

         19  whatever his name is, when he walked out the door,

         20  don't your people read the laws that comes from

         21  headquarters? He didn't answer me.

         22                 This thing here has gotten to the

         23  point, that thank God the gag order is off, I am

         24  glad for your invitation, and I would like to get it

         25  on record, maybe you can get a hold of somebody in
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          2  headquarters to reread this Patrol Guide to these

          3  officers and let them know that the owner has the

          4  right to call his own tower. If we can get there in

          5  a matter of minutes, even faster than DARP, because

          6  what we have done is we have associated. When we get

          7  an accident call, we call a towman in the area to

          8  get over with any kind of a tow truck and by hook or

          9  crook we move the disabled vehicle out of the flow

         10  of traffic to give us time to get our heavy duty

         11  trucks to the scene of the accidents.

         12                 This is what I said, I hope I can get

         13  it on the record, I hope somebody will talk to the

         14  Chief of Patrol, the police, the ex-Chief of Patrol

         15  Chapman, he was going to push it and then he let it

         16  slide.

         17                 Also, as for the remarks from my good

         18  friend Paul Rubenfeld about the years he has been

         19  here, I brag, 1951 my father, may he rest in peace,

         20  we came here, spent one year in City Hall. We had a

         21  rate four in one, we did that for 21 years.

         22                 Councilman Spigner, they are crying

         23  nine years. My father lived for 21 years with a four

         24  in one rate to tow an automobile. And he and

         25  exclusion from the original tow law by the Board of
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          2  Estimate -- by the Council and they ignored it.

          3                 As for bringing up SARD, I would like

          4  it on the record, for my friend Mr. Paul Ruben and

          5  Mr. Norman Teitler, a federal Judge in Atlanta, in

          6  Houston, Texas, this is all federal -- New York, you

          7  have an American flag, it is part of the United

          8  States, okay? I remember somebody saying a remark,

          9  let's forget about it. Mr. Sabini, I love you

         10  because you kept talking with Mr. Weiner, where are

         11  the cops? That same thing a federal judge in San

         12  Antonio said, and they said they are going to go,

         13  allowing the owner to call his own towman in San

         14  Antonio, they said whatever we do we got to make

         15  sure we do not relapse into the old system before

         16  1963 ordinance when wreckers raced to accident

         17  scenes, crashing into each other, and getting into

         18  fights over who would tow a vehicle. This is taken

         19  from '98, San Antonio, federal judge rule. The

         20  suggestion was a rotation program, which first

         21  allows people their choice of towing, which is in

         22  our federal court case. And it said a dispatching,

         23  competing tow truck -- a dispatching competition of

         24  tow trucks at the scene of the accident. In other

         25  words, you want to put it on a time basis, but there
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          2  they already ruled they are worried, like over here,

          3  but in Houston the federal judge said you can't have

          4  a SARD program. You can't give it to a select group.

          5  That is an anti-monopoly thing. Everybody who can

          6  qualify must get on.

          7                 Again, these are federal, and for the

          8  longest time I had to keep my mouth shut about the

          9  federal court case. Yes, I did win the part from

         10  Denise Cody, on October 31st, 1997, the City has not

         11  recognized it. My trucks have run with this thing on

         12  the truck that says rates upon request. We have

         13  pictures. We put that on the trucks, rates upon

         14  request, for a regular tow. You want me to tow you,

         15  I price you in advance and we mark it on the slip,

         16  priced in advance. I tell you whether I am going to

         17  do it for $25, like we have fellows out there

         18  running, or they are going to do it for 50.

         19                 One other thing, about the cost. You

         20  people I am not sure realize, you heard the talk

         21  about the equipment going up. You have heard of what

         22  they call a constant drive cars, these cars that all

         23  the four wheels work. They cannot be towed, even for

         24  the least mechanical problem they got to go up on a

         25  car carrier. Car carriers cost more money, they are

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            104

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  harder to load, a lot of them then come under the

          3  TDL licensing program, which means you got to pay a

          4  driver more money, and the other requirement, and

          5  according to the law, if a man goes out on my towing

          6  on a regular car, you call me your car broke down, I

          7  give you a price $75, if you go one block, one mile,

          8  five miles, for a tow, you agree, I do it.

          9                 But if there is an accident and I got

         10  to come out with a car carrier and load the vehicle,

         11  and put it on the car carrier -- and I am not

         12  sticking up for the collision people --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: You have to

         14  sum up.

         15                 MR. RUDE: All right, I am summing up

         16  to the facts; one, that I need help from the Police

         17  Department, until we get our answer from the federal

         18  court to start enforcing the 15,000 pound law, to

         19  give the cops, to give the owner the right to call

         20  his own tow on 15,000 pound vehicles. That is my

         21  major complaint here.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Thank you.

         23                 MR. RUDE: Thank you, again.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Thank you.

         25                 MR. RUDE: I appreciate your time.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Rick Burgess.

          3                 MR. BURGESS: Good afternoon. How are

          4  you? My name is Rick Burgess, and I am the General

          5  Manager of City Line Towing.

          6                 The Department of Consumer Affairs

          7  recently required DARP participants to possess a

          8  repair shop facility. Companies such as mine went

          9  out and spent the money necessary to secure the

         10  repair facility equipment and necessary storage

         11  space required by the Department.

         12                 It was explained to me that the

         13  reasoning behind this was, the requirement, that

         14  almost every towed vehicle requires some type of

         15  repair work.

         16                 It makes sense therefore to require a

         17  DARP participant to maintain facilities for

         18  repairing a vehicle on its premises. What has

         19  changed? Sometimes a consumer requires a minor

         20  repair. This can be made at our shop and the

         21  motorist can be on their way.  Without having a

         22  repair facility, the motorist would have to have

         23  their vehicle towed to elsewhere only to occur

         24  additional towing fees.

         25                 If it comes back to my shop it is a
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          2  flat fee rate. The choice is left to the consumer.

          3  Now this rule has been removed.

          4                 In addition to competing with new

          5  participants who are only required to have a storage

          6  yard, the Department has now made my cost of doing

          7  business higher than the new applicants to the

          8  program, we do not compete on level ground, who

          9  compensates me?

         10                 It makes sense for DARP participants

         11  to have fully operational repair facilities to

         12  eliminate those businesses who perpetuate sham

         13  locations as described by the Department of Consumer

         14  Affairs by simply having a yard with a telephone

         15  that forwards to another location for which the

         16  Department of Consumer Affairs continuously holds

         17  hearings. It is asked that the repair shop criteria

         18  requirements be a DARP participant and be made law.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Thank you.

         21                 Ralph Gonzalez.

         22                 MR. GONZALEZ: Good afternoon. I have

         23  some hand-outs.

         24                 Good afternoon, Madame Chair,

         25  distinguished Council members.  As we sit here
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          2  today, some 13 months have passed by since you voted

          3  back in December 1997 to adopt these changes in the

          4  rules and regulations governing our industry that

          5  have affected us all in a very negative way.

          6                 Where should I begin? First of all,

          7  let's discuss this ridiculous $65 tow fee, with the

          8  first day of storage included for cars brought back

          9  to the towing facility from an accident scene.

         10                 As I explained to all of you back in

         11  December 1997, we in this industry have been towing

         12  cars for nine plus years without a one cent raise.

         13  That's right, nine plus years, long years, without a

         14  one cent raise.

         15                 I don't know of any service type of

         16  business, or any business for that matter, that has

         17  gone for nine plus years without an increase in

         18  their rates, for the services that they charge to

         19  their customers.

         20                 Common sense alone would dictate that

         21  raises in a labor-oriented type of business are not

         22  only required but are of the essence, if the

         23  business is going to keep up with the cost of

         24  living.

         25                 Truck insurance, liability insurance,
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          2  workmen's compensation and disability insurance,

          3  unemployment insurance, real estate taxes, water and

          4  sewer taxes, electricity and natural gas, telephone

          5  service, two-way radio service, beeper service,

          6  accountants and lawyers' fees, rent, everything,

          7  including numerous other items too lengthy to

          8  mention. And last but not least, by any means the

          9  least, our most expense of all the hired help,

         10  drivers, dispatchers, secretaries, mechanics, auto

         11  body repairmen, painters, every one has received pay

         12  raises in the last nine years, except us in the

         13  towing industry.

         14                 Now, after nine plus years, what do

         15  you Council members whom are elected into office by

         16  the very people in the industry do? You roll back

         17  the towing rates to a point in time prior to what we

         18  have been working for for nine years ago. This is

         19  not what we expected of you. We need and deserve a

         20  raise which we so rightfully merit and is long, long

         21  overdue.

         22                 We ask for the same fee for our

         23  services that the City of New York has been charging

         24  to the citizens of New York City when it tows their

         25  cars away for unpaid parking tickets, while claiming
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          2  that they are losing money on every tow.

          3                 One-hundred and fifty dollars flat

          4  fee from the accident scene back to the towing

          5  facility plus storage, $100 hook-up and $7 per mile

          6  to tow to destinations other than our facility.

          7  Storage. Storage should be no less than $20 a day

          8  for start, and then increase the no less than $25

          9  per day after three days.

         10                 Let me remind all of you that some

         11  New York City parking meters, costing 25 cents per

         12  15 minutes, that translates to $1 per hour or $24

         13  per day, and this is for open space in an open area,

         14  where your vehicle is subject to vandalism, theft

         15  and body damage.

         16                 We, on the other hand, in this

         17  industry store vehicles in secured storage lots and

         18  are responsible for both the vehicle and its

         19  contents. And by the way, have any of you Council

         20  members parked your cars in New York City parking

         21  lots lately, or go out to a movie, a play or a

         22  dinner? If you have, then you know what you paid in

         23  storage fees just for a few hours. Imagine if you

         24  left the car there overnight.

         25                 As I was on my way here I tried to
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          2  park in a New York City police garage, as I always

          3  do when I come to this area. It costs me

          4  approximately $6 to park for about three or four

          5  hours. I am not really complaining, but today they

          6  barred me from going there and told me I needed a

          7  pass, probably I surmised because of the

          8  demonstration. I went to a parking garage, because

          9  there is no place to park around here, and I asked,

         10  being born and bred in New York City I want to know

         11  what it's going to cost me. I said what is it going

         12  to cost me to park my car for two or three hours? He

         13  told me $23. I says you've got to be kidding me, for

         14  three hours you are going to charge me $23? He says

         15  that's the rate. It is posted on the sign. I says I

         16  ain't paying you that. I got back in my car and I

         17  drove away. I will not pay $23 to park my car for

         18  three hours, when I got to store cars for a maximum

         19  of $15 for 24 hours, and that is after the fourth

         20  day.

         21                 In respect to allowing third-party

         22  insurance companies to inspect and write estimates

         23  in our storage yards, while we are owed monies for

         24  towing and storage from the owner of the car, it is

         25  again very detrimental to my industry. Let me
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          2  explain to you.

          3                 As I did back in December 1997, when

          4  an insured person has a vehicle and his own

          5  insurance company comes down to inspect and appraise

          6  the damages to this vehicle, and if it is declared a

          7  total loss by the insurance company, within a few

          8  days they send a tractor trailer salvage vehicle

          9  hauler to come and remove this total loss vehicle.

         10  Naturally they come into the office first and they

         11  pay all the towing and storage fees up until the day

         12  of the removal of the total loss vehicle.

         13                 This is definitely not the case with

         14  third party claims. When the owner of a vehicle

         15  files a claim with someone else's insurance company,

         16  meaning a third party insurance claim, the insurance

         17  company that insures the other vehicle is under no

         18  obligation to pick up the vehicle, should the

         19  vehicle be deemed a total loss. And more often than

         20  not they don't pay 100 percent of the claimed

         21  percent to them but rather a percentage of the claim

         22  based on the percentage that they perceive that they

         23  were at fault.

         24                 It always seems that they favor

         25  themselves very gracefully. In any event, they never

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            112

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  come back to pick up that salvage of these total

          3  loss vehicles. More often than not, these

          4  irresponsible and inconsiderate owners of these

          5  vehicles abandoned them in our storage yards, thus

          6  causing us further burden upon us as we now have to

          7  legally dispose of this vehicle, this hunk of junk

          8  in our yard. Now we have to place a mechanics lien

          9  on it, waiting at least 30 days for it to go

         10  through, much longer on out-of-state cars, plus

         11  adding insult to injury, we have to pay an average

         12  of $150 to $200 to the lien processing company for

         13  this service.

         14                 This scenario gets repeated over and

         15  over again, even with owners that don't even bother

         16  to attempt to put third party claims in but simply

         17  just walk away from their cars and abandon them in

         18  our storage yards.

         19                 Where is the justice for this

         20  industry? If we get to the accident scene late

         21  because of heavy traffic or poor weather conditions,

         22  we run not only the risk of ridiculous fines at

         23  Consumer Affairs but also no guarantee of payment

         24  for services rendered.

         25                 This is unAmerican and this industry
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          2  cannot and will not tolerate this any longer. We

          3  need your cooperation to pass laws that protect both

          4  the consumer and the industry that is serving the

          5  consumer as well.

          6                 I am asking all of you to jointly and

          7  separately work with the industry and immediately

          8  start passing laws that reflect our course of doing

          9  business and lead us with a fair margin of profit,

         10  which is the American way and the very foundation

         11  that the American business have been built on in

         12  this great country of ours.

         13                 I trust that you will make the right

         14  and just decisions that you must make in order to

         15  keep the industry alive before there is no industry

         16  left at all to perform these services to the

         17  citizens of this great City whom so desperately need

         18  the services.

         19                 I thank you all for your patients in

         20  listening to me, and will be happy to answer any and

         21  all questions that any of you deem fit to ask of me.

         22  And I would also be willing to meet with any or all

         23  of you at your offices to further discuss this

         24  important matter.

         25                 Thank you very much.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Thank you very

          3  much.

          4                 Council Member Spigner.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Yes. Mr.

          6  Gonzalez, you make a very compelling case, but when

          7  you put the little hyperbole, as you compare a

          8  meter, a City meter, what you factor out to be $24 a

          9  day, when these meters are only charging the rate

         10  from either 12 to 14 hours, 12 to 16 hours a day, so

         11  it is not accurate mathematically, or public

         12  policy-wise, to use that portion of the charge to

         13  make your case.

         14                 And similarly, when you say that you

         15  are spending $23 for three hours - sure. And if you

         16  want to get office space in this district, or if you

         17  want to put your shop in this district, you would

         18  probably pay $100 a foot, you are not paying that in

         19  Long Island City. So, you are comparing apples and

         20  oranges or whatever examples you are giving.

         21                 I am not making this point to

         22  minimize your case, but you have a strong case

         23  without these little glitches and blips, okay?

         24                 MR. GONZALEZ: Fine. Thank you.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Thank you very

          3  much.

          4                 We will be having another meeting, as

          5  I said, the end of June, and I hope that we will be

          6  able to have some of the answers that we have

          7  questions for. If not, I will be very angry.

          8                 This meeting is adjourned.

          9                 (Hearing concluded at 3:40 p.m.)
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          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 24th day of March 1999.
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